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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Dunlop India Limited will be held at 21 & 22, Jessore Road, Kolkata - 700028 on Saturday,
26" December, 2015 at 11.00 a.m. to transact the following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To consider and adopt the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 315t March, 2015 and
the Balance Sheet as at that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the

"Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri A. K. Agarwal (DII\[ . 00700198), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint M/s Gora & Co., Chartered Accountants, Kolkata, the retiring Auditors of the
Company, who being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as the Auditors, to
hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Mesting until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company and to authorize the Board of Directors of
the Company to fix their remuneration. : '

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Place :

Date

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification{s), the following
Resolutlon

As an Ordinary Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made there
under and the Articles of Association of the Company and all other relevant acts and
rules, Shri Rupendra Nath Kumar (DIN : 06873411) be and is hereby appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company fo hald office for 5 (five) consecutive years.”

7 - By Order of the Board

Kolkata Ashok Kumar Agarwal
7" November, 2015 . ‘ Director -

NOTES:

1. The Company has made an application vide SRN on 28" September, 2015 requesting for an
extension of time for the purpose of holding the Annual General Meeting to Registrar of
Companies, West Bengal, who has approved the same  and allowed the Company to held
AGM up to 31.12.2015 vide their letter dt.30" September, 2015

2. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sectlon 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
Special Business of the Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

3. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
IS ENTITLED TO APPQINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND TO VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD
OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE VALID AND EFFECTIVE, MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE



COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A person can act as a proxy on hehalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as
a pfoxy for any other person or sharehoider.

4. Voting through electronic means.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration} Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide
members facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic means as an aiternative to vote
physically at the AGM and the business may be transacted through e-voting services provided
by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL}. The instruction for e-voting are as under

~and the Members are requested to follow the said instruction to cast their vote through e-voting.

i) - User ID and Password for e-voting is provided in the table given on the face of this
annexure to the AGM Notice. Please note that the password' is*alt initial password.

iiy  National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) shall also be sending the User ID and
Password to those members whose e-mail address are registered with the Company /
Depository Participant(s). For members who have not registered their e-mail address can
use the details as provided overleaf.

i)  Launch internet browser and type the following URL :
http:ﬂwww.evoting.nsdI.com

_iv) Click on “Shareholder-Login”
v)  PutUser ID and Password as initial password noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

vi)  The Password Change Menu will appear on the screen. Change fo a new password of
your choice, making sure that it contains a minimum of 8§ digits or characters orina
combinations of the two. Note new password.

vii) Once the e-voting home page opens, click on e-voting>Active Voting Cycles.

viii)  Select the EVEN (e-voting event number) of Dunlop India Limited {the number is
provided in the attached document). Once you enter the number, the Cast vote page will
apen, Now you are ready for e-vot]ng.

ix)  Cast your vote by selecting your favoured option and click submit. Also click confirm
when prompted

%) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote Cast Successfully” will be displayed.
xi) Pleasé note that once your vote is cast on the selected resolution, it can not be modified.

xii)  Institutional shareholders (i.e. Members other than individual, HUF, NRI's etc) are
required to send a scanned copy (PDF / JPG format) of the relevant Board Resolution /
Authority Letter efc., fogether with the attested specimen signature(s) of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who is / are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer via e-mail at
atish.shaw@gmail.com with a copy marked at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Please note that_ :

* * Login to e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key-in the
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through ‘Forgot Password’ option

. availabte on the site to reset the same.
) ) 5



Your Login ID and Password can be used by you. exclusively for e-voting on the Resolution
placed by the companies in which you are a sharehoider.

It is strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep il confidential.

Please note that if you have opened 3-in-1 Account with ICIC! Group i.e. Bank account, demat
account with 1CICI Bank Ltd and trading account with 1CICI Securities Ltd, you can access e-
voting website of NSDL through their website viz., www.icicidirect.com for the purpose of .
casting your voles electronically by using your existing user ID and password used for accessing
the website www.icicidirect.com.

Please note that in case you are not able to login through the ICICI direct website, you can aiso-
access the e-voting system of NSDL by using your existing user ID and password for the e—votmg
system of NSDL.

NOTES :

A)

B)

E)

F)

In case of any quenes you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs} for
shareholders and e-voting user manual for shareholder available-at the downloads section

of http://lwww.evoting.nsdl.com. You can also contact NSDL via e-mail. at

evoting@nsdl.co.in.

The e-voting period commentes ¢n 23 December, 2015 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 25h
December, 2015 at 5.00 p.m, During this period, shareholders of the Company holding
shares either in physical form or in demat form, as on the cut-off date of 19 December, 2015
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall also be disabled by NSDL for
voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the

'shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Since the Company is requi'red to provide members the facility to cast their vote by electronic
means, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in demat form,
as on the cut-off date i.e 19" December, 2015 shall cast their vote electronically.

Mr. Atish Kumar Shaw, Practicing Chartered Accountant (M. No. 306098) has been
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize - the e-voting process in a falr and transparent
manner.

The Scrutinizer, shail within a period not exceedmg 3 working days from the conclusion of the

e-voting period, unlock the votes in presence of at least two witnesses, not in employment of
the Company and make a Scrutinizer's Report of the vote cast in favour of or agalnst if any,
forthwﬂh to the Chairman of the Company. :

The voting righis shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share cap:tal of
the Company as on 19" December, 2015.

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's
website | www.dunlop.co.in and on the website of NSDL within two days of passing of the
resolutions at the 88" Annual General Meeting of the Company on 28" December, 2015 and
communicated to BSE Ltd. '

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain ciosed from’
24M December,2015 to 261 December, 2015 (both days inclusive).

Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report and the Admission Slip at
the Meeting. Annual Report will not be distributed at the Meeting. No Food Packet will be
served at the AGM. :

The Members; who are still hoiding the Company's equity shares in physical form and have

not converted their shareholding in demate_ria!ized form, are once again requested to covert
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their equity shares from physical form to dematerialized form as the same will provide
adequate facility in trading in the Cafmpany's scirip at Stock exchange in future.

8. Members who have nol registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register
their e-mail address either with the Company or its RTA for receiving -all communications -
including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc from the Company electronically instead of
sending the printed / hard copies of the same by post. Serving of documents to the Members .
through electronic mode ensures receipt of the Natices / Documents / Communication timely,
promptly and without any loss in postal transit by them.

9. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical  names or joint
holding in the same order of name are requested to send the share certificates to our RTA
for consohdatlon in to a single folio.

10. Non - Resident Indian Members are requested to mform the Companys RTA, M/s C B.
Management Services (P) Ltd., immediately of

L. the change in the Residential status on return to India for permanent settiement.

li. the particulars of the Bank Account maintained in India with complete name, branch,
account fype, account number and address of Bank with .Pin code Number if not
furnished eartier.

11. As per provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 facility for making nominations
is available, to individuals, holding shares in the Company. Nomination Form prescribed can
also be obtained for the purpose from the Company’s RTA.

12.  All documents referred to in the accompanying Notlce and the Statement pursuant to
Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company during business hours on all working days up to date of
declaration of the results of the 88" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

- EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

item Nos. 4

Shri Rupendra Nath Kumar (DIN : 06873411) and was appointed as the Director of the Company
in the ecategory of an Independent Director w.e.f. 27" May, 2015. In accordance with the
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161 and Article 91 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Shri Rupendra Nath Kumar shall hold office up to. the date of this Annual General
Meeting. The Company has received notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act,

- 2013 from a member along with the deposit of requisite amount proposing his / her candidature

for the office of Director.

Shri .Rupendra Nath Kumar Is not disqualified from being appointed as the Director in terms df
Section 164 of the Act and have given their consents to act as Director.

As pe.r Section 149 of the Act, the independent director can hold office for a term up to 5 (five)

consecutive years on the Board and they shall not be included in the total number of directors for
retlrement by rotation. -

In the opinion of the Board, Shri Rupendra Nath Kumar fulfills the conditions for his .appecintment
as the Independent Director as specified in the Act and the Listing Agreement.

Keeping in view the qualification and the experience possessed by Shri Rupendra Nath Kumar,
your Directors feel that the- appointment of Shri Rupendra Nath Kumar as the Independent
Director of the Company will be beneficial to your Company and accordingly, recommend the
Resolution set out in ltem No. 4 of the Notice for your consideration and approval.-



None of the Directors of the Company except. Shri Rupendra Nath Kumar are interested or
concerned in the Resolution set out in ltem No. 4 of the Notice.

Place : Kolkata

Date

7" November,2015

By Order of the Board
Ashok Kumar Agarwal

Director

Particufars Relating to the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed :

1.

Name

Age
Qualifications
Expertise

Date of Appointment
No. of Equity Shares held in the Co
Other Directorships

Dlrectorshm( 8)i in other Public Comnanles .

Falcon Tyres Lid

Hirakud Roilling Mill Ltd
Hirakud Industrial Works Ltd
Bhartiya Hotels Ltd
Monotona Tyres Ltd

~ Shree Projects Ltd

Sew Engineering Systems Ltd
Dunlop South Ltd
Dunlop East Ltd

Name

Age
Qualifications
Expertise

Date of Appointment |
No. of Equity Shares held in the Co
Other Directorships

Directorship(s) in other Public Comgames
| 5

Shri A. K. Agarwal

o7 Years.

Graduate. .

He has a rich experience of 32 years in-
executing  EPC Project - under
International ~ Reputed  Consultants
Limited & M. N. Dastur & Co. for

_setting ug (BQP Package) of Captive

Power Plants of different clients like
Birla's, Jindal's, Hindalco, Singhania's,
Nicco  Group, Nagarjuna  Group,
Jaiswal's, and NJ Bhilwara (HEG)
Group. He also has an experience for
successfully commisioning of 6 MW
Power Plant of Falcon Tyrtes Ltd and
revamping of ~machineries of Dunlop
India Ltd and various other experience
in different field as well.

24" January, 2013

Nil.

Committee Memberships, if any,
with position of other public companies

- Member — Audit & SIGC Committee

- Member — Audit Committee

Shri Rupendra Nath Kumar
62 Years.
B. Com., LLB

. As a professional advocate, he has a

very good experience of over 25 years
in handling all type of matters under civil -
and criminal procedures. During this
journey, .he has handled corporate and
non corporate clients as well. .

271 May, 2015.

Nil.

Committee Memberships, if any,
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Falcon Tyres Lid

Jessop & Co Ltd

Dunlop Rubbers Ltd

Dunlop Tyres Lid

SPR Resorts Lid

Ruia Technologies Ltd

Payneganga Sugars & Chemicals Ltd
Meiro Developers Lid

with position of other public companies
- Member — Audit & SIGC Committee
- Member — Audit & SIGC Committee




Directors Report

To, .
The'Members,
DUNLOP INDIA LTD.

Your directors have,; pleasure in presenting the 88 th Annual Report on the business and

operations of the company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year
ended 31st March,2015. '

FINANCIAL. HIGHLIGHTS (STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED)

During the year under review, performance of your company is as under:

LY

Partiowars " T s7AnbAtoNE | GonSOLmRTES—
201415 | 201544 | 301415 | zo1s08 |
e W TR N N

(364.53)

(23,234.82) | 6513.56 6,512.63 -

(27,500.94) | 6,148.10

(27,620.53) | (23,236.04) |
STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

There has been no Production in both the Units of the Company during the year under
reviesw.  The Ambatiur plant s -still under "Suspension - of Operation” w.ef 21st
February,2012. Refurbishment work gt Sahaganj has started subsequent to reopening of
plant on 25th September,2014 after execution of MOU with Labour Union, Sahagan] plant

was also under "Suspension of Work" during 8th October,2011 {o 24th September,2014,

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (4,264.05) | (364.24) | (4,264.90)
\dd: Balance B/F from the previous year (23,236.04)

(27,498.87) | s, 149.32

" (19.59) (29,384.%4)

{23,234.82)

DIVIDEND . .
In view of of suspension of operations and loss during the year, your directors are unable

to consider any dividend for the year.(a\/



SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The Company has the foltowing Subsidiaries

1) Ebony Commercials Private Limited,
2} Dunlop East Limited '
3) Dunlop South Limited .

’ ]
In terms of the provisions of section 129 of the Companies Acf 20 3, separate statement
containing the salient features of the financial statement of its subsidiaries are attached.
However, the annual accounts of the subsidiary companies and the related detailed -

DEPOSITS

. The following details of deposits, covered under Chapter V of the act:
I Deposits Accepted during the year -NIL -
[l. Remained unpaid or.unclaimed as atthe end ofthe year: : Rs 799.586 |lakhs
fil. Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest
thereon during the year and i 80, number of such cases and the total amount
involved- '

a.  Atthe beginning of the year - Rs. 799.56 Lakhs
b. Maximum during the year: - Rs. 799.56 Lakhs
C. Atthe end of the year: - Rs. 799.56 Lakhs

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL S

There has been no change in the Legal Status of the Company since last year | company -
continues to be under the Official Liquidator consequent to the Stay Order of Hon'ble
Supreme Court on 12% June 2013 against the order dated ond May 2013 of the Division
Bench of Hon'ble High Court of Caleutta directing winding up of the Company. '

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has an adequate system of internal-control procédure as commensurate with .
the size and nature of business, which ensures that alf assets are safeguarded and protected
against loss and all transactions are recorded and reported correctly.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN ] '

In terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act; 2013, the extract of Annual Return in Form
No. MGT - 9 of the Company as on 31% March; 2015 is annexed separately forming part of
this Report. - I Y



NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS ,
The Board of Directors of the Company duly met 4 (Four) times respectively on 29.05.2014,
09.08.2014, 10.11.2014 and 04.02.2015 during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013
form part of the notes fo the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF GONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The details of transactions with related parties form part of the notes to the financial
statements provided in this Annual Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS : .
The Company has received hecessary declarations from independerit directors as provided
under Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Clause of Listing Agreement

STATUTORY AUDITORS .
M/s Gora & Co , Chartered Accountants , Kalkata . Auditors of your Company , hold office tilt

the conclusion of 88" Annuai General Meeting and being eligible , offer themselves for re-
appointment .The Company has received a letter from them to the effect that their re-
appeointment , if made, would be within the prescribed fimits under Section 141(3) (g) of the
Companies Act ,2013. - :

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any
clarification/ explanation. The Notes on financial statements are self-explanatory, and needs
no further explanation. :

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPT!ON, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been
furnished considering the fact that both the factory were non-operationai during the period -
under review.. :

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES '

The provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, is not
applicable as no employees covered under the said section were employed during the year
under review, .- ;

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Shri Dipak Das resigned from the Board w.e.f 27t May, 2015. The Board placed on record .
its deep appreciation for the valuable sen}ic_g rendeﬁd by the abave Director during his

At 1o



/ applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri A, K Agarwal will retire from the
Board by rotation at the 88" Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment,

- COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD : .
Currently, the Board has three committees, viz. Audit Committee, Share Transfer & nvestor
Grigvances Commitiee (SIGC) and Remuneration Committee, The composition of such
committees are as follows -

| Committees Name of the Members
Audit Mr. Dipak Das | Mr, Ashok Kumar | Ms. Baishali Roy
: - | (resigned  w.ef | Agarwal T
27.5.2015)
Share Transfer & Investor | -do- -do- —do-
Grievances '
Remuneration ~do- ~do- . -do-
L

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON RESERVATION MADE BY THE
AUDITOR ,

Necessary comments or explanation have been included in the notes forming part of financial
statement of this Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE AS PER RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION
OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 _ '
Your company has not paid any remuneration attracting the provisions of Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Hence, no
information is required to be appended to this report in this regard

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your:
directors confirm that: "’
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year, ended 31st March,
2015, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures; '

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently

¢) the dirgctors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities; '

d] e Airmmtmem oo od e 3



section forming part of this Report.

MANAGEMENT Discussiopn AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with Clause 4g of the Listing Agreement, the Management_ Discyssion and
Analysis Report is annexed in g Separate section forming part of this Report, o '

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Kolkata ‘ . For and on behaif of the Boarg

Date » y. gl 2915 ' B Director



4 Form No. MGT -9
' Extract of Annual Return
As on the Financial Year ended 31.03.2015
[Pursuant to Section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

. Registration and other details :

) CiN B : L25191WB 1926 PLC008539

) Registration Date : 19.08.1926

i} Name of the Company : DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

v} Category / Sub-Category : Compary Limited by Shares/Indian Non Govt. Company

V) Address of Registered Office : FLAT NO. 1, 5™ FLOOR, 3, SYED AMIR AL AVENUE
KOLKATA - 700017 - .

Vi) Whether listed company : Yes

Vi) Mame, Address & contacts of RTA' M/s. C.B. Management Serviges (P) Lid.
P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata 700013

ll. - Principal Business Activities of the Company : Manufacturing, marketing and seliing tyres & tubes

All the business activities eonfributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company : N.A.

S. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product / Service % to total
products / services Tyres Tubes - Flaps & Ors fumover of the
Company
01 Manufacturing, marketing and selling of } 40,11,10,00 40,13,10,01  40,12,90,04 -

automotive tyres, aero tyres, off the | 40,11,20,00 40,13,10,02  40,10,99,04
road tyres, tractor tyres, tubes, fan & 40,11,30,00 40,13,90,01  40,10,89,01
vee bells, hydraulic braded hose, | 40,11,99,01 40,13,90,03  40,10,10,02
‘conveyor belting, transmission belting | 40,11,99,02 40,13,90,04 - 40,09,50,03
efG. )

. Particutars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Gompanies :

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company : N.A. - As
“there were no operations carried out during the period under review.

S. Name and Address of the CiN Holding / % of Applicable
N. Company Subsidiary/ | shares Section

Associate held.
01 | Ebony Commercials Pvi  Lid. | U51900WB2002PTC085175 | Subsidiary 100.00 | 2(46) & 2(87)
02 | Dunlop South Lid U25120WB2011PLC166821 Subsidiary 99.98 | 2{46) & 2(87)
03 | Dunlop East Lid U25190WB2011PLC166822 | Subsidiary 99,98 | 2(46) & 2(87)

V. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital break-up as percentage of fotal equity :

) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares hald at the beginning | No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholders of the year year 1. change
during
the
year
Demat Physic | Total % of | Demat Physi | Total - % of
al total | cal total
share ' share
5 5
A_ Promoters
(1} Indian 20109137 - 20109437 | 16.49- | 20109137 - 20108137 | 16.49 -
Sub-total (A)(1} .| 20109437 - 20109137 | 16.49- | 20169137 - 20109137 | 16.49 -
{2) Foreign 26198637 C - 26199637 | 21.48 | 26171465 - 26171465 | 21.46 0.02
Sub-total {AN2) 26199637 = 26199637 | 21.4B | 26171465 « 1 26171465 21.46 0.02
Total shareholding ,
of Promofer (A} = 48308774 - 46308774 37.97 | 46280602 - 48280602 | 37.95 0.02
{ANHAND)

<%



P B. ~ Public
Sharehoiding

1. Institutions 784303
Sub-total (BY)

732752 | 8111828
B

784303 8111829

2. Non-Institutions
Bodies Corporate -
Indian 5323989

501531 | 55977097 | 45.89 | 5896124 | 50152 | 56048457 45.95

290437 | 1t585175 9.48 8622174 | 29188 | 11541887

Indivuals & Ors 8680300
Sub-total (B)2) -

Total Pubiic
shareholding (B) | 61597355

= (BY{1)HB)2)

C. Shares held by
custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
tm— B+C)

12198287 1¢0 61583203 | 50392
5

121982387 100

61597366

603855 | 12198287
09 5

]

00 61583203

5

SN. | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the baginfing of Shareholding at the end of fha '
Name the year

- _year
No, of of total | % of | No. of | % of total [ % of [ o
shares shares of | shares shares shares of | shares change
the .| Pledged ¢ the Pledged during
Company | encumbere Company | encumber the year
d to fotal ed to total ¥
o shares shares - s
1 Dil Rim & Wheel | 16600935 13.61 100 16600935 | 13.61 100 - '
Corpn Ltd
2 Hiland Traders Pvt | 20109137 16.49 100 20109137 | 16.49 100 -
Lid
3 Wealth  Overseas | 9598702 7.87 8570530 7.85 3.50 0.02
Pte Ltd )
Total 46308774 | 37.97 | 88.56 46280602 | 37.e5 88.55 1 0.02

{iii) Change in Promoters’Sharehoiding :

8.N. - ’ Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding =

beginning of the year
No. [+]

during the year ~
X f | % of tofal shares | No. of | % of total shares
shares of the Company " | shares of the Company

At the beginning of the year 46308774 37.97 46280802 37.85 “

Date wise increase / decroase in| 28172 8.02 = i
promoters shareholding during the year i
specifying the reasons for increase J
-decrease (e.g. Allotment / transfer |/
bonus / sweat equity stc)

i At the end of the year 46280602 37.95 46280602 37.95

{iv} Shareholding Pattern of top ten Sharcholders {other than Directors, Pfomoters and holders of

GDRs and ADRs) : NIL i
S.N Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding |

-

beginning of the year during the year
For each of the top 10 shareholders No. of | % of total shares No.®  “of | % of tofal shares
shares of the Company shares of the Company
At the beginning of the year )

1 Life Insurance Corpn of India Ltd .- 6378452 5.23 8379452 . 523 | .
2 Suncap Commoditles itd 17500000 X 14.35 | 17500000 14.35
3 Regus Impex Pvt Lid B 17500000 14.35 17500000 14.35
4 Salputri Commerce Pvt Ltd 15000000 12.30 | 15000000 12.30
& Kanpur Properties & Finance Pyt Lid 3932123 : 3.22 3932123 3.22
[ Miller Traders Pvt Ltd : 770404 0.6318 770404 0.6315
7 General Insurance Gorpn of india 6555504 0.5374 855504 0.5374
8 The Oriental Insurance Company Lid 382377 ~0.3135 382377 0.3135
g Unit Trust of India 306825 0.2515 306825 0.2515
16 The New India Assurance Company Ltd 252597 Y —————



Date wise increase /[ decrease in - - -
promoters shargholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. Aflotment [ transfer /
bonus ! sweat equity etc)
Af the end of the year
1 Life Insurance Corpn of India Ltd 6370452 5.23 65379452 5.23
2 Suncap Commodities Lid 17500000, 14.35 17500000 § 14.35
3 Regus Impex Pvt Lid 17500000 14.35 17500000 14.35
4 Salputri Commerce Pyt Ltd 15000000 12,30 15000000 12.30
5 Kanpur Properties & Finance Pvi Ltd 3932123 3.22 3832123 3.22
] Miller Traders Pvt Lid 770404 0.6316 770404 0.6316
7 General Insurance Corpn of India 655504 0.5374 655504 0.5374
8 The Qriental Insurance Company Ltd 382377 0.3135 382377 0.3135
] Unit Trust of India . 306825 0.2515 306825 0.2515
10 ‘The New India Assurance Company Lid 252583 0.2071 252593 0.2071
(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel : N.A. )
. LT
S.N. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
‘beginning of the year during the year
For each of the Directors and KMP No. of | % of total shares | No. of | % of total shares
shares of the Company shares of the Company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase / decrease in
prometers shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease {e.q. Afllotment [ transfer f
bonus / sweat equity etc)
Al the end of the yesar
V. Indebtedness :
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / acerued but not due for payment
Secured Loans | Unsecured Loans | Deposits | Total
excluding . Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning | Rs 9142.15 Lakhs Rs 19830.88 Lakhs | Rs, 799.568 | Rs 28572.59
of the financial year Lakhs Lakhs
1) Principal Amount
Ii} Interest due but not paid
lif} Interest accrued but not
due )
Total (i+i-+ii) Rs 814215 Lakhs | Rs 19630.88 Lakhs | Rs, 799.56 | Rs 29572.59
Lakhs Lakhs
Change in indebtedness
during the financial year
* Addition
* Reduction {Rs. 300.00 L akhs) (R$300.00 Lakhs)
Net change (Rs. 306.00 Lzkhs) < | (Rs300.00 Lakhs)
Indebtedness at the closing of
the financial year
1} Principal Amount ) Rs. 884215 Lakhs | Rs.19630.88 Lakhs | Rs. 799.56 | Rs. 29272 59
1i) Interest due but not paid - Lakhs Lakhs
lii) Interest accrued but not
dug
Total {i+ii+ili) Rs. 8842.15 Lakhs | Rs.19630.38 Rs. 799.56 | Rs. 29272.59
) Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
Vi. Remuneration of Directors and KNP
A. Remuneration fo MD / WTD and / or Manager : NIL
S.N. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MBAWTD/Manager Total Amount

WV



B. Remuneration to other Directors @ NiL

S.N. | Particulars of Remuneration Mame of Directors Total Amount
1 Baishali Roy Sitting Fees Rs. 20,000/-
2 Dipak Das Sitting Fees Rs. 20,000/-
€. Remuneration to KMP other than MD/WTD/Manager ; Nit.
S.N. } Particulars of Remuneration Key WManagerial Personnel
. CEO_ | Company Secretary | |, LCF0 | Total

Vi Pénaities / Punishment / Compounding of Offences : Nil.

| Type Section of the | Brief Details of | Authority Appeal made, if
Companies Act descripfion penalty ! | [RDINCLT/Court] | any fgive
punishment details)
compounding
fees imposed
C. Other Officers in defauls  : NIL
Penalty
Punishment
Compoundi
ng

YV
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

In compliance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agresment, your Directors
present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance on the matters mentioned in the
said clause and the practice followed by your Company in this regard.

1.

Philosophy of the Company on Code of Corporate Governance

The philosophy of your Company on Comporate Governance envisages the
attainment of high levels of transparency, accountability and equity in all facets of its
operations and in all interactions with stakeholders, including, inter-alia, the
shareholders, employees, the government and lenders. The commitiees such as
Audit, Shareholders’ / invesiors’ Grievances and remunef;atipg. meet regularly fo
consider aspects relevant.to each Committee. Your Directors are happy to inform
you that your Company’s existing practices and policies are in conformity with the
requirements stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of india (SEB!.  Your
Company is committed to achieving international standards of Corporate
Governance, *

Your Company has already implemented the revised provisions of Clause 49 of the -
Listing Agreement. Your Board has adopted a Code of Conduct and made it
applicable fo all the membsrs of the Board and io the senior management.

Your Company believes that all its operations and actions must serve the undarlying

goal of enhancing overall shareholders’ value over a sustained period of time.
Board of Directors

In terms of the Company’s Corporate Governance Policy, all statutory and other
significant and material information including information mentioned in Annexure-|A
of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement are placed before the Board on regular basis

As on 31st March, 2015, your Board had Two Non-Exécutive / Independent Diractor
and One Non Executive Directors who are professionals, with expertise and
experience in general corporate management, legal, finance, technica), engineering

None of the aferesaid directors is a member in more than ten committees nor acts as
the chairman of more than five committees constituted by the board of directors of
the company, in which they are directors.

-
The Board meets at least once in a quarter inter-alia to review the campany’s
performance and Financial Resuits and more often, if considered necessary, to
transact other husiness,

During the current Financial Year uhder feview, four meetings of the boar:d- of
directors were held on the following dates —

29" May, 2014, 9% August, 2014, 10" November, 2014 and 4t February, 2015,

The following tables and the notes below the tables give details of the atiendance of
Directors at Board meetings held on the aforesaid dates and the dates for
appaintinent of Directorship, if any, during the year under review and the tast Annual
General Meeting, number of memberships heid by each director in the board /
committess of various companies including committea chairmanships, which are .

statutorily required to be constituted by the respectiv;glmp/em'es :




EH

Name of the Directors and the Category
* as on 31t March, 2015

No. of other Directorships &
Committee Memberships / Chairmanships
as on 31st March, 2015

Other . Committee Commitiee

Directorships Membearships Chairmanships
Mr. Dipak Das 3 4 4
Non-executive / Indepandent Direclor *
(appointed wef 02052014 and
resigned w.e.f. 27.05.2014)
Mrs. Baishali Ray 19 - -
Non-executive / independent Director ,
{appointed w.e.f. 20.05.2014) ‘ ol
Mr A, K. Agarwal 19 2 -
Non-executive Director

Mote : Only the Audit Commitiee and Shareholders' / Investors’ Grievances Commitiee
constituted by the Board of Directors of the respective companies have been considered.

Altendance of each Director at the Board Mestings and at the Jast Annual General Meeting .

Name of the Directors

Attendance

Particulars from §1.04.2014 to 31.03.2015

No. of Board
Meetings held
during the tenure
of the Director

No. of Board
Meetings aitended
during the tenure of

the Dirgctor

in the last AGM
held on 21.08.2014

Mr. M. L. Chiauhan

1 - N.A.
{resigned w.e.f. 26.07.2014) :
Mr. Dipak Das 4 4 Yes
Mrs. Baishali Roy 4 T4 Yes
Mr. 8. Ravi - N.A
{resigned w.e.f. 18.07.2014)
Mr. A, K. Agarwal 4 A, Yes

3. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee constituted by the Board of Direciors of the Company had two
Non-executive / Independent Directors and one Non- Executive Director as on 319

March, 2015.

The terms of reference of the Audit Commiltee are comprehensive and are in
conformity with the matters specified in the Stock Exchange Listing Agreement and
under Section 177 cf the Companies Act, 2013. The Company Secretary was the
Secretary of the audit commitiee.

Constitution of the Audit Commitfee and related information :

Name of the Committee Members as
on 315 March, 2015 '

‘ Category

Mr. Dipak Das, Member & Chairman
{appointed we.f 02.05.2014 and
resigned w.e.f. 27.05.2014)

Non-Executive / Independent Director

Mrs. Baishall Roy, Membar
(appointed w.e.f. 20.05.2014)

Non-Executive / Independent Director

Mr. A. K. Agarwal, Member
| MIF-A-R g

Non-Executive Director
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During the year under review, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The
committee met on 29" May, 2014, 9" August, 2014, 10" November, 2014 and 40
February, 2015 and considered various Financial and Audit related matters and other
matters as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Attendance of the members at the Audit Committee meetings

Name of the Member

Attendance Partieulars
from 01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015

No. of Audit Committee No, of Audit Committee
Meetings held during the | Meelings,attended during
tenure of the Member the tenure of the Member
Mr. M. L. Chauhan 1 -
. (resigned w.e f. 26.07.2014) :
Mr. Dipak Das * 4
Mrs. Baishali Roy 3 . . 3
Mr. S. Ravi 1 -
{resigned w.e.f, 18.07.2014) '
Mr AL K. Agarwal ' 4 .4

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board of Directars of the Gompany
had two Non-Executive / Independent Directors and one Non Executive Director for
consideration of the appointment of managefial personnel and payment of
remuneration to such managerial personnel and various matters as required under
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

During the year under review, no meeting of the remuneration commitiee was held.

Non-Executive / Independent Directors of the Company do not receive any
remuneration from the Company except the sitting fees for attending the Board and
Committee Meetings @ Rs. 3,000/- and Rs. 2,000/ respectively for every such
meetings. However, no sitting fees were paid to Mr. S. Ravi and Mr. ‘A, K. Agarwal,
Non-Executive Directors, for the board and committes meetings who are in the
employment with Ruia Group of Companies.

The details of remuneration paid to the Directors during the year 2014-15 are given
below : N

(appointed w.e.f. 29.05.2014) .

Name of the Director Salary | Perquisifes | Sitling Fees Total
) {Rs.) {Rs.) {Rs.} {Rs.)

Mr. M. L. Chauhan - - - -

(resigned w.e.f. 26.07.2014)

Mr. Dipak Das - - 20000 20000

(appointed w.ef 02.05.2014 and

resigned w.e.i. 27.05.2014) -

Mrs. Baighzli Roy - - 20000 20000

Mr. S. Ravi
{resigned w.e.f. 18.07.2014)

Mr. A. K. Agarwal




The Company has not entered infe any pecuniary relationship or transactions with
the Non-Executive Directors. The company has so far not issued any skock options
to any of its Directors including its Executive Director. None of the directars of the
company hold any Equity Share in the Company. The Company Secretary was the
Secretary of the Remuneration Committee.

5. Shareholders’ f Investors’ Grievances Committee:

The Company has constituted & Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievances Committee of
the Board of Directors to ensure effective monitoring of shares and investors related
issues and to redress their grievances.

The Committee had two Independent / Non Executive Director and one Non
Executive Directors as on 315t March, 2015. '

'o an

Gonstitution of the Sharehoiders’ / Investors’ Grievances Committee {SIGC)
and refated information :

L

Name of the Committee Members as
on 31%t March, 2015

ir. Dipak Das, Member & Chairman
(appeointed wef 02.05.2014 and
resigned w.e.f. 27.05.2014)

Mrs. Baishali Roy, Member -

(appointed w.e.f. 20.05.2014)

Mr. A. K. Agarwal, Member

Catégory

Non-Executive / Independent Director

Nan-Executive / independent Director

MNon-Executive Director

During the year under raview, four mestings of the SIGC ware held. The commitiee
met on 29" May, 2014, 9™ August, 2014, 10" November, 2014 and 4t February,
2015.

Attendance of the members at the SIGC meetings : 4

Attendance Particulars

Name of the Member
. - from 01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015

No. of Audit Committee No. of Audit Committee
Meetings held during the | Meetings attended during
tenure of the Member the tenure of the Member
Mr. M. L. Chauhan 1 -
{resigned w.e.f. 26.07.2014) ¥
Mr. Dipak Das
Mrs. Baishali Roy
Mr. 8. Ravi . 1 -
resigned w.e.f. 18.07.2014)
I»i\/lr. A K. Agarwal _ 4 4

The Committee is headed by Mr. Dipak Das. The Committee meets o consider,
inter-alia, Shareholders’/ Investors' complaints ete.

At the beginning of the year (i.e. on 15 April, 2014), there was no transfer pending for
registration and no grievance / complaint was pending for redressal by the
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) — M/s. C B Management
Services (P) Ltd., Kolkata, During the year under review, t {one) grievances /.
complaints were ' received from the shareholders and all such. grievances /




complaints were resolved by the Company's RTA on time. As on 31% March,
2015, .There was no transfer pending for reqlstratlon and also no grievance /
complalnt was pending for redressal by the company s RTA.

There are no outstandlng GDRs /ADRs / Warrants or any Convertibie Instruments.

General Body Meetings:

Details of the Annual General Meeting held in the past 3 years:

AGM YEAR VENUE DATE TIME
- gsth 2011-2012 | Kala Mandir, 48, 18/07/12 11.00 a.m.
' : Shakespeare  Sarani,
Kolkata — 700 017
86t . 2012-2013 | Kala Mandir, 48, 23/09/13 11.00 a.m.
Shakespeare =~ Sarani,
Kolkata =700 017 ,
g7t 2013-2014 | Academy of Fine Arts, 21/08{ 14 10.00 a.m.
' 2, Cathedral Road,
Kolkata - 700 071

During the year under review, there was no special resolution, which required voting through
postal ballot. )

7.

Disclosures:

The disclosures on materialiy significant related party transactions as compiled by -
the management and relied upon by the Auditors is given in note 2.29 appearing in
Notes 2 on Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2015.

There were no instances of non- comphance of any matter related to the capital
markets during the last three years. '

Means of Communication :

The quarterly / half yearly results are normally published in ‘Business Standard’ in
English Newspaper and in ‘Arthik Lipi’ in Bengali Newspaper, circulated in the State
of West Bengal.

Your Company has a web-site. All quarterly results and important information are

being regularly sent to the Stock Exchange(s), where your Company’s shares are .-

listed. Your company is not sending a Half Yearly Report to each household of-
shareholders. No presentations were made to the institutional investors or to an
analyst other than the published information. / press releases. A Report on
Management Discussion & Analysis has been attached to this Annua! Report.
General Shareholders’ Information:

Annual General Meeting:

Date of AGM . 26% December, 2015

Venue and Time : - At 11.00 AM at 21822, Jessore
: Road, Kolkata - 700 028

Financial Calendar : 18t Aprit to 315t March.

s ;U,



vi)

Financial Reporting for the Financial Year 2015 - 2016 :

First Quarter Results | - end of August, 2015
Second Quarter and Half Yearly Results . - mid of November,2015
Third Quarter Results - mid of February, 2016
Fourth Quarter and Yearly Results - end of May, 2016
Dates of Book Closure: from 24" December, 2015 to 26t December,

2015 (both days inclusive).
Proposed Date of Dividend Payment: N.A.
Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchange(s):

Prior to allotment of 5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
at a Premium of Rs. 2/- on preferential basis to the allottees on 28.04.2012,
the Company's entire 7,19,82,875 nos. Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid-up are listed and frequently traded at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).
The Company has already applied BSE for Irstmg of aforesaid 5,00,00,000
Equity Shares and necessary listing fees for the’ said" additional shares has
already been paid by the Company.

The scrip code for the Company's Equity Shares at BSE is 5b9130 and I1SIN
is INE 508A01012.

The Company has submitted delisting application under SEBI (Delisting of

- Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 to other 4 Recognized Stock Exchanges —

Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited,.
Delhi Stock Exchange Limited and Madras Stock Exchange Limited in
February, 2010 as because despite listing, trading on the company's Equity

* Shares were not available at any of the above stock exchanges and none of

the above Stock Exchanges had nation-wide trading terminals. Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited, Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited and Madras
Stock Exchange Limited have already delisted the company’s equity shares
and removed the company’'s equity shares from the official list of their
exchanges w.e.f. 29" March, 2010, 31% March, 2010 and 6™ January, 2011
respectively. The confirmation of delisting of its shares” from Delhi Stock
Exchange Limited is yet to be received. The Company's Equ:ty Shares
continue to remain listed and traded at BSE.

The compény's application subfnitted to National Stock Exchange Limited
(NSE) for listing and trading of 7,19,82,875 hos. equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each fully paid-up thereat is yet to consider by NSE..

Address for Correspondence ;

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent :

CB Management Services (P) Ltd.

P-22, Bondel Road

Kolkata — 700019,

Telephone . (033) 22806692 / 6693 / 6694 / 2486

(033) 40116700
Fax . {033) 22870263
E-mail . rta@cbmsi.com

Reqgistered Office :

Flat No. 1, Front Side, 5t Floor

9 Syed Amir Ali Avenue :

Kolkata — 700 017. -
Tel: (033) 22894747




Fax : {033) 22893433
E-mail : kanhaiya.sharma@dunlop.ce.in
Web-site : www;dunlop.co.in

Any communication or paper for the share related work may please be sent
either directly fo the company's aforesaid Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
or to the company at their aforesaid address.

vil} | - Btock'Market Price Data :
High and low month-wise quotations of the Company’s Equity Shares at BSE
during the financial year 2014-15 were as follows :

Month - Share Price (Rs.)
High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
. o e
Aprll, 2014 7.22 5.75
May, 2054 . 828 _ 6.00
June, 2014 13.55 - 825
July, 2014 15.50 \ T 8.85
August, 2014 1.77 9.55°
September, 2014 21.36 9.77
Oclober, 2014 31.60 20.85
November, 2014 27.80 18.00
December, 2014 24.00 18.00
Jaruary, 2015 22.35 , 15.30
February, 2015 19.85 14.25
14.95 10.40

Margh, 2015

viii)  Distribution of Equity Shareholding as on 31st Mareh, 2015:

Range of No. of Y Number %
Shares Sharehoid of Shares
from - to ers
1 to 500 36447 92.32 3668262 3.01
501 to 1000 1726 - 4.37 1498493 1.23
1001 to 2000 738 1.87 1242392 1.02
2001 to 3000 196 0.50 850067 0.53
30061 to 4000 92 023 - 496143 , 0.41
4001 to 5000 688 - 0.17 _ . 514739 | 042
5001 to 10000 123 031 1229398 1.00
10001 & above 89 0.23 112690381 92.38
Total 39479 100 121982875 . 100
7




ix)

Geographical Distribution of Shareholding as on 315 March, 2015:

(Persons acting in concerf)

11 City/Location No. of Folios %
No )
T Kolkata & Adjacent Places 8927 25 61
2. 7 Mumbai 8120 20.57
3. NewDelhi 2677 653
4, Chennai 1442 3.85
5 Ahmedabad 1509 n3.§2
8 Bangalore 1174 267
7 Pune 1096 278
8 Hyderabad R 537 1.36
9 Places other than above 14097 | 3571
Total 39479 100 N
X} Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2015 in terms of Clause 35 of the
Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges : :
Category Nos. % Shares Pledged
Nos. %
Promoters’ Hoiding '
*Foreign Promoters 26171465 21.48 20873448 79.76
*Promoters’ Associates 20109137 16.49 20109137 100.00

Sub-total 46280602 37.95 40982583 88.55

“Firancial Institutions,
Foreign Institutional Investors,
Insurance Companies, Mutual
Funds, Banks etc.

Non-Promoters’ Holdin . . ' -

*Others (including Bodies 8111829 8.65
Corporate, Non-Residents &
Indian Public)
67590444 55.40
Sub-total , 75702273 62.05 - -
GRAND TOTAL 121982875 | 100.00 40982583 33.60

xi}.

Dematerialisation of Equity Shares:

Both National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Securities (India) Limited {CDSL) have allotted International Securities Identification
Number (ISIN) —INE 509401012 on the Company’s 7,19,82,875 nos. Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up. Application for providing dematerialized trading facilities
for 5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 16/~ each fully paid up aliotted on preferential
basis {o the alloitees on 28.04.2612 1o be made after getiing the listing and trading
approval from BSE. 6,81,45,419 nos. Equity Shares of the Company representing




04 67% of the Company's lislad Share Capital were dematerialized as on 31 March,
2015.

xii) . Plant Locations:

a. P.O. Sahaganj, P.S. Chinsurah, Dist. Hooghly, West Bengal.
b. No. 512, M.TH. Road, Ambattur, Chennai, Pin - 600053, Tamil Nadu.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Koikata ' W
Date : T“ August, 2015 ! ctor + . opirector

i
i',
i
;
i
i
H
H




CERTIFICATE

The Board of Directors,
Dunlop India Limited.

We certify that —

a)

b)

c}

d)

We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended 31% March, 2015 and that to the best of our knowl_edge and belief :

these statements do not contain any materially untrus statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

these statements read together with Accounting Policies, Noteg tp the Accounts and

Statutory Auditors’ comments thereon, present a true and ‘fair view of the
Company's affairs and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations. These accounting practices are being consistently
followed by the Company.

There are, o the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by
the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the
Company’s Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internsl confrols for
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or progose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there were *

i no significant changes in internal control over financial reparting during
the year; ’
ii) _ ho significant changes in accoun'ting palicies during the year and that the

same have been disciosed in the notes to the financial statements: and
iit) no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the

involvement therein, i any, of the Management or an Employee having a
significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial

reparting. :
CFO i;irector

Kolkata, %" August, 2015




Compliance Certificate

It is hereby declared that ail the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel
have affirmed compliance with the ‘Code of Conduct for the Members of the Board and
Senior-Management of Dunlop India Limited® during the Financial Year ended 31st March,

2014, .
CFO = %r

4
LI

Kolkata‘,’?‘“ August, 2015




 AUDITORS'
GOVERNANCE

To, . ’
The Members of Dunlop India Limited.

1

2

4}

Firm Registries No. 327183E

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance oy
Duniop India Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2015 as stipulated in Clause
49 of the Listing Agresment of the said Company with Stock Exchanges in india.

The Compiiance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is responsibility of the
Management. Our examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance
Note aon Certificate of Corperate Governance (as stipulated in Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement) {ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accduntas‘r;ts of India and
limited to the procedures of implernentation thereof, adopted by the Company for -
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of the opinior: on the Financial Statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanation given to us and the
representation made by the Directors and the Management, we certify- that the
Company has complied in all material respects with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance Is neither an assurance as to future viability

of the Company nor the seificiency or eﬁectweness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/s. GORA & CO.
Chariered Accountants

G. C. Mukherjee

Place: Kolkata o _ ‘ Partner
l'.'!ate:‘fth August, 2015 ‘ : Membership No. 017630
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In terms of Clause 49 (V) of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a Report on
Management Discussion & Analysis is attached to this Annual Report.

1.Tyre Industry Structure & Development

The Indian tyre industry has been witnessing tremendous - growth for the past few years on
account of growth in automobiles demand, especially in passenger vehicles and two-wheeler
segments. In fact, availability of raw material coupled with substantial decrease in price of
Natural rubber(which accounts for almost 40%-50% of Raw Material Cost ) and ultramodern
production facilities has led the country to emerge as one of the wor]d’s most competitive tyre
markets. Driven by the strong demand in automobile OEM sector and replacement market, the
India tyre industry has been witnessing stupendous growth from since the last two fiscal years.

Further, according to the research report, “Indian Tyre Industry Forecast to 2015", the tyre
production in India is anticipated to reach 191 Million Units by the end of FY 2016. Moreover,
manufacturers are expected to invest huge amount into the industry over the next few years,
with a major proportion of this investment directed towards the radial tyre capacity expansion.

Tyre manufacturers are coming up with new technologies to provide customers with better
products and services. The concept of ‘green tyres’ is becoming.a paradigm of the country’s
competitive edge. Technologies like “Self inflation” and “Run flat tyre (RFT) “ are paving the
way in Indian market. This new category of tyres are now being widely accepted in India.
Several greenfield projects are also there in pipeline to facilitate an increase in the domestic
production capacity to meet the growing tyre demand in the country. :

India’s market for radial tyres in commercial vehicles section is still in its infancy. The passenger
car segment switched to radial tyres in a short period of time, with radial tyre penetration level
for the category reaching 100%. However, penetration level of radial tyre has also started to
increase rapidly in the light commercial vehicles and truck & bus segment. This segment will be

the largest growth area over the next few years. :

Companies are also looking for overseas plantation of rubber to meet their raw materials nee
which will help the companies to acquire raw material at cheaper prices. :

Further, tubeless tyres are gaining ground in Indian market as almost all the automobile -
manufacturers are launching their vehicles with tubeless tyres. This shows that tubeless tyre.
market will exhibit tremendous growth in the coming years.

However, there were no production in the factories of Dunlop India Ltd as Ambattur Factory
continued o be under Suspension of operation and Refurbishment work are on in Sahaganj
Factory, which was reopened on 25th September after execution of MOU with Labour Unions.

By an order dated 31¢ January 2013 Order for liguidation of Dunlop India Ltd was passed by
Hon'ble Caleutta Migh Court ,however by order of Hon'ble Supreme Court, presently Status
Quo is prevailing in the matters of Dunlop. :




2.Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities '
- Improverient in Automobile Industry prospect: Growing economy leads to improving.
Automobiie Industry prospect which further leads to Increasing OEM demand that in turm leads
to Subsequent rise in replacement demand. With continued emphasis being placed by the
Central Government on development of infrastructure, particularly roads, agricultural and
manufacturing sectors, the Indian economy and the automobile sector/ tyre industry are poised
for an impressive growth. - ‘ ' :

» ',‘, Ny R
« Access 1o global sources for raw materials: with the access to global sources for raw materials,
Indian tyre industry can stabilize price fluctuation in raw materiais and control their margins.
Eurthermore, Indian tyre companies can also follow and maintain global quality standards and
international process and system certifications, which will help them during export. Eg.
Ralkrishna Industries imports nafural rubber and has very little exposure to domestic rubber
price fluctuations and thus margins have remained strong. '

- Exploration of new markets: Many Indian tyre companies are exploring the opportunities to.

enter into new markets.

Threais

« Introduction of other transport faciliies: Introduction of other transport facilities like metro,
“monorails and local trains keeping poliution hazards caused by combustion of automobile fuels.

» Cheaper imports of Tyres: The major concern for the Indian manufacturers is that the price of
the tyres in the overseas market like China and South Korea is comparatively low compared 1o
domestic market. Therefore, many auiomobile manufacturers have switched to the option of
importing tyres from international market. The landed cost of tyres fram China is much lower
than the Indian price. In addition, tyres from South Korea are imported at 30% customs duty

while from other countries the duty levied is 35%. Therefore in both cases the Indian tyre

manufacturers are on receiving end.

» Expectation of rise in natural rubber prices: Natural rubber prices, which accounts for over one

' third of total raw material costs, are expected to rise as total output of Natural rubber in India is”

likely to drop aver 10 percent in 2014-15 from the previous crop year, hit by heavy rain in key
growing regions and as farmers suspends tapping due to lower prices.dntroduction of other
transport facilities: '

3.0utlock

After a softer input costs regime over the past one year, Indian trye industry may show some .
heaithy growth in coming years. Prices of natural rubber, the most important raw material for
the industry, have dropped to multi-year low in the domestic as well as internaticnal market on
account of poor demand from countries like China and oversupply of the commodity.

Besides, the fall in crude prices is a double bounfy for tyre companies as petroleun-based
products account for over 30% of the raw material used in the industry. A fall in crude prices will
be a complementary sweetener for tyre makers which have already seen operating margins
improved to double digits in the last two quarters due to a steady drop in natural rubber prices,

B
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However, some significant hurdies towards attaining growth could be raw material related price
volatility, rupee appreciation and the looming threat of cheap Chinese imports. The Indian tyre
companies need ta make active efforts to search newer markets as the existing markeis for bus-
truck tyres, which account for about 45% of the total export volume, is nearing saturation. There
is aiso an urgent need to increase the degree of radialization in order to safeguard their share in
the export market. Global tyre companies have been making constant efforts to innovaie and
provide a diverse range of products like tyres with pressure warning systems, run flat tyres, eco-
friendly tyres and energy efficient tyres. In this situation, the Indian tyre companies have to
make a growth strategy of continuous innovation and increasing ewphasis on product
differentiation.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have been informed of the major business and
operational risks identified by the Company and steps proposed to be taken to mitigate the
same. The Company also has d comprehensive risk analysis and management system, wherein
all risk factors are identified and proper action taken to mitigate such risks. : :

4. Economic Risk

The domestic industry faces the threat of increasing peneiration of Chinese tyre imports into the
tndian truck and bus (T&B) radial fyre segment, at least partly contributed by domestic capacity
constraints. The industry also faces challenges from unfavourable trade pacts and substantially
cheaper Chinese products. This is likely to curb the ability of participants in the domestic market
to pass on the price increases resulting from input cost hikes '

The buéiness is substantially affected by the prevailing economic conditions in india. In Centre,
with the ushering in of New Government, the Industry is expecting that some measures will be
taken by this Government which will be Pro-industry and at the same time various fiscal

- discipline being introduced by RBI will curbed down the inflation to a moderate level. We

anticipate growth in Automebile sector in due course of time ..

5. Segment-wise/product-wise perf_onhance and discussion on the financial performance
with respect to operationai performance. :

Your company has incorporated standard preventive maintenance practices in the plants to
enable uninterrupted production of all the products — truck, OTR  and industriai  products.
However due 1o reasons mentioned earlier, there had been no production during the year under
review.

The financial performance of your company in respect fo its operational  performance is being
shown separately.

6. Internal Control System and their adequacy

The Company has adequate internal control in all areas of its operation threugh internal and
external auditors. The system.ensures that all transactions are authorized, recorded and

reported correctly. The systems and procedures. are Teviewed continuously to ensure timely

preparation of financial information and safeguarding the assets of the Company.



7. Human Resources & Industrial Relations

Company's Sahaganj Factory was reopened on 250 September,2014 after exacution of MOU
with Labour Unions and the Management is putting all out effort for immediate opening of
Ambattur Factory.

8. Cautionary Statement , . _ '
L IR

The Management Discussion & Analysis report gives description of company’'s major
objectives, expectations or arnticipations which . are essentially forward looking within the
meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations. Actual result may differ materially from
the expectations. Important factors that could influence the company's operations include global
and domestic supply and demand condition affecting the selfing prices of products, input
availability and prices, changes in Government regulations/tax laws, economic developments

- within the country and factors such as fitigation and industry.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audiled the accompanying standalane financiaf stetement of DUNLOP INDIA
LIMITED("the Company™), which comprises the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2015, and the
Staternent of Profit and Lose and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

f ! .
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements e

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
staternents that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financiat performance and cash

" flows of the Company in accortiance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indig
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Comparies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assels of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreéularities; selection
and application of appropriate accoeunting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and mainienance of adeguate intemal
financial contrals, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, refevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error

Auditor's Respansibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion orn these standalqne financial statements basedan our

udit. We have taken info account the provisions of the Aci, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are reguired fo be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements ard nian
and pesform the audit to obtain reasonabla assurance about whether the financial statements are
feee from material misstatement. ‘ o

An zudit involves performing procedures to obiain audit svidence about the amounts and the -
disclosures in the financial stalements. The procedures selected depend on the auditers
judgment, including the - assessment of the risks of material misstalemerit of the financiat
statements, whether due 10 fraud or errer. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internat financial controi felevant to the Company's preparation of the financial

operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also inclides avaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as wal| as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statermnents,

Wea believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified audit opinion,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1) Refer to note-no. 2.6 regarding non-provision of interest on Working Capital Ioan from
the bank.

2) Refer to note no. 2.8 regarding rnion provision of interest on certain loans against which
one time settfemant is under active conside;_‘atéon {amount nat ascertainad). c
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3}y Refer to noie no. 2.11 regarding recognifion of deferred tax asssis amounting to Rs.
© 9740.00 lakhs on carry forward loss and unabsorbed depreciation withouht virtual
certainty of profit in future years.

4) We could not veify the investment held as non-current Investment with book-value of
Rs.7.00 iakhs as neither the share cerlificates in physical form nor any demat certificate
produced to us. '

The cumulative effects of above is not ascertainable on the nat Loss and shareholder's
fund as amount of certain notes is not quantified. -

Qualified Opinidn

In our opinion and to'the best of our information and according to th’e explanalions given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Qpiniori Paragraph, the
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a Wue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepied in India:-

-

a. in the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March,
2018;

b. in the case of Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Loss for the year ended on that date ;
and ’

¢. in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows for the vear ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“theOrder”} issued

by the Central Government of India in terms of sub- section (11) of section 143  of the
Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable. :

2y, As réqu!red by Sedion 143(2) of the Act, we report that:

ay We have sought and obtained. alf the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

b) In our opinion, preper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Statement, and the Cash Flow Statemént
deatt with by this Repord are fn agreement with the books of account.

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statemenzis. com'piy with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 &f the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March

© 31, 2015, taken on record hy the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disquatified as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as a director in ferms of
Section 1684 (2) of the Act. '

 For GORA & CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No.327 18365 nony,

=

. G.CMUKHERJEE: [,
C/O Abhijit Dutt & Associates, yo | Folkata 1 5

8/2, K.5.Roy Read,2nd Floor : Partner =5, N

Room ne.2& 3. - NG

: ‘ ey ~
Koikata-700001 . . : o : Membership No_017630\%‘ﬁ)//

Nate: IO 2045 5



Gora & Co.

Chartered Accountants

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members
- of the Company on the standalone financiaj stalements for the year ended 31

" March 2015,

i

I

4
LI

‘we report that

a) Proper records showing full particulars, including Quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets were maintained by the company. However, as poth the plants of the
Company are not in operation, the fixed assets register could not pe produced to us
for verification and hence wWe are unable to comment whefher the company s

maintaining proper records showing fulf particulars, including quantitative details and.

Situation of fixed assets,

h) As Ambattur plant of the company is under suspension of operation, physical

~ verification of fixed assets could not be carried out by the management during the

year and hence we were unable to comment whether there exists any material
discreparnicies between the physical balance and book balance.

a} As Ambattur plant of the Company is ~under suspension of operation, physical

verificafion of inventory has not been carried out dun'ng the year.
b} As mentioned in (a) above, clause 3 {if) is not applicable for the' year.

¢) The company was maintaining proper records of inventory. However as Stated in
{a) above, we are unable to make any comment on discrepancy  between book
balance and physical balance as the record of inventory was not produced to us.

a) As per information and expranations. given to us,.the Company has not given
any loan, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms or other parties covered in
register maintained under section 189 of the'CompanieS,Act 2013 except t ¢§
subsidiaries, . , - N
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b) There are no overdus amounts of more than rupees one lakh in respect of the
loans granted to the bodies corporate listed in the registef maintained under section
189 of the Act

There is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the
company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets
and for the sale of goods and services. However, during the year there is no saie of

~ goods and seyvices and purchase of inventory.

vi.

VI,

The Company had accepted deposits from the public in earlier years. However the
Directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provision of Section 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provision of the Companies Act and the Rules framed thereunder,

 wherever applicable have not been complied with. However the company has repaid

Rs.345.77 lakhs 1o the Fixed Deposit Holders after it's take over by the present

managemeant .

As Ambattur plant is undsr suspension of operation, cost records as specified by the
Central Government under sub-section{1) of section 148 of the Companies Act were
not maintained for the year and hence we are unable to make any comment.

a} The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues of the

current financial year including Provident Fund. Employees State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales Tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value added
tax, Cess and other Statutory dues to the extent applicable with the appropriate

authorities,

However, in respect of above, statutory dues including for eatlier years are ouistanding

af the end of the vear for a pericd of more than six months aggregating to Rs. 501.83

. . . i
iakhs as below : . 4%‘*5:;‘\\
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VI
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(Rsin lakhs)

) ] 163.08 : -

Provident Fung

b) Details with respect to the amoynt Iinvolved 'and the forum where dispute - s
pending to pe provided under this clause with regard lo disputed liability in respect of
éa/és tax, income fax as detailed in Nofe No. 2.24 are yet to pe com,bf/eo‘ by the
management and therefore, we are unable to provide the same.

under has bean transferred to such fund within time.

The Company has incurred cash losses in current financial year and also in the
immediately preceding financia) year,
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Al According to the information and explanations given to us, no term loans were raised
by the company duri ng the year and hence application for the purposes for which they
were raised does not arise. M

X, According to information and explanat;ons given to us and based on Qur examination
of the books and records of the Company in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any incidence of fraud on or

by the Company nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

: ‘ for GORA & Co.

' Chartered Accountants
C/O Abhijit Dutt & Associates Firm’s registration no. 327183E
8/2 K S Roy Road,

2™ Floor, Room No. 2 & 3 ) Ny ;
Kolkata - 700 001 _ %‘T’*
GC Mukherjee

_ Date :Mud?,’:,zm 5 A ' ‘ Partner .

Membership No. 017630




"DUNLOP INDIA LTD

Batance Sheet as at 31st March ,2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

" Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

1 Non-Current Liabilities
l.ong Term Borrowings
Other Long Term Lisbilities
Leng Term Provisions

Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Current Lisbilities
Short Term Provision

JTOTAL

ASSETS .
Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets.

Tangible Assets
{ii} Intangible asseis

Capital work-in-progress
Nen-Current Investments
Deferred Tax Assefs {Net)

Lang Term Loans and Advances

Current Assets

inventories

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Shott Term Loans and Advances

TOTAL

As at Jist
Note  pnrarch, 2015
(Rs in Izkhs)
2.1 12,198.29
22 56,954,072
69,152.31
23 7 23,301.82
2.4 1,722.29
25 __ 342,42
. 25,366.63
2.8 . 4,388.06
2.7 4191
2.8 5,435.77
2.3 : 881.47 -
11,747.21
106,266.15
25 82,402.76
29 741137
2.10 21.33
2.1 9,554.00
212 __288.10
: §9,677.56
2.13 ) 5,767.43
2.4 34.62
2.15 137.24
2142 549,29
6,588.58

106,266.15

* ‘q Y

As at
31st March,20144

{Rs in fakhs).

12,198.29
73,435.95
23,301.92

1,766.99
594,43

25,662.34

4,388.06
41.91
6,566.03
18118

114,177.13

110.275.47

86,451.84

7411.37
21.33
9,554.00
286.X7

103,727.01

5,767.30
34.62
136.47
81007

§,548.48

110.275.47

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes on Financiatl Statements

As per our Report of even date Attached
For and on behalf of

Gora & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 327183F
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i | Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st Wiarch,2015,

Note

Firm Registration No.

N

1G C Mukherjee

As at As at
31st March,2015 Jist March,2014
(Rs in lakhs) {Rs In lakhs)

Revenue from Opere{tions 2.18 - -
Other Income 2.18 3056.07 0.63
Total Revenue 305.07 0.63
Expenses: !

Cost of Materials Consumed 217 T e .
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - -
Changes In Inventories-Finished Goods, 2.18 - - -
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade . : ,
Employee Benefit Expenses 219 - 466.10 126.04
Finance Costs 2.20 : - 554
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 2.21 4,030.39 146.39
Other Expenses 222 ‘ 84.81 86.68
Total Expenses 4,581.10 364.65

‘ Proﬁ’d(Loss) Before Extra Ordinary ltems and Tax (4,276.03) {364.02))

Exceptional/Extra Ordinary ltems - B}
Prior Period Adjustment 23 11.98 (@.22)
Profit/{L.oss) before Tax (4,264.05) (364.24)
Tax Expense:

Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax - -
Profit {Loss} for The Year ‘ {4.264.08) (364.24)
Basic And Diluted (Rs.) {3.50) {6.30)
Significant Accounting Policies 1

_{Notes on Financial Statements 2

As per our Report of even date Attached For and on hehalf of the Board

For and on behalf of

Gora & Co. ; frimes,

Chartered Accountant Didctor Drector




UNLDP INDIA LIMITED

fEASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 34st March, 2015

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:-
Net Profit (Loss) before tax and before exceptional itern
Add: Adjustrment for
Depreciation
Interest Income
Interast Expense

QOperating Profit / (Loss} before Working Capitai changes
Adjustments-for:
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Trade and other Payable
Long Term Trade Liabilities

.

Cash generated from Operations
Direct Taxes (paid) / Refund

Gash Flow before extraordinary item
Exceptioral item

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
{B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net Purchase/Sale of Fixed Assets

Interest Received
Net cash used in Investing Activities

{C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:-
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings
Interest Paid
Net Sash used in Financing Aclivifies
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 01.04.2014

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31.03.2015

Year ended 31st March,15
(Rs inLakhs}

(4,264.05)
4,030.39
{4.70)
- 402569
(238.36)

(38.95)
(0.13) ’

318.02 * e

14300y . _235.24
{3.12)

'(3.1-2) '

(3.12)

(081}

3.89

0.77

24.26

25.03

Year ended 31st March,14
{Rs in Lakhs)

(364.24)

14539

554 151.93

(212.31)
74.70

175.92

- 250.62

38.31

38.31

38.31

(32.88)
{38.42)
.11
24.37

24.26

As per our Report of even date Attached
For and on behalf of

Gora & Co.

Chartered Accountant

Firm Registration No. 327183E

%%7

G C Mukherjae
Partner

Kolkata,
7 ¥

For and on behalf of Board

Dirdetor

Chief Financial Officer

P

jirector

Company Secretary




, DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

1. Significant Accounting Pelicies

Basis of Accounting

The Company maintains its accounts following the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain fixed assets.
All expenses and income {o the exient known considered payable and receivable respectively uniess stated otherwise have
been accounted for.on mercantile basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements require management to make estimates and assumption that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities and assets as at the balance sheet date and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

}
Ty ane

Contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a fiability wilt be ncurred and the amounts can reasonably be estimated.
Difference between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the year the results are known/ materialised.

Fixed Assels .

Fixed Assefs are stated at cost of acquisition or construction or at revalued amounts wherever such assets have been
revalued. Cost includes cost of refurbishment, borrowing cost and other expenses incurred in bringing fhe assets to the
conditions of intended use.

Depreciation

a) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the axtent of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method (SLM). Depreciation
is provided based on useful fife of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of
assets which were revalued and found to have useful life different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il

b) Depreciation in case of revalued amounts of fixed assets are provided on straight-line method on the values given by the
valuers on the basis of remaining useful life as estimated by the valuers. :

"¢) Classification of plant and machinery into Continuous Process Plant is done by the Management based on techmca]
certificates and reports, :

Capital Work in Progress
Capital Work in Progress includes capital advances and expenses incurred during the refurbishment of the plants & Trial
Runs expenses pending allocation till the Commercial use of the respective assats.

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of the company’s assels are reviewed at each balance sheet date. An-impairment loss is recognized,
wherever the carrying amount of an asset is in excess of its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is greater of net
selling price of the asset or ifs value in use.

Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there has been change in the recoverable amount
and such loss no longer exists or has decreased. .

Impairment loss/reversal thereof is recognizéd as an expensefincome in the staternent of profit and loss and adjusted to the
carrying amount of the asset once all the departments/sections becomes operational over a period. Company is refurbishing
its various sections of manufacturing and is of the view that they will have carrying cost in excess of its.recoverable amount.’

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is determined on the basis of first in first
out, except engineering stores, cost-for which is computed on the basis of weighted average. Work-in-progress represents
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;s jnvestments

lnvestments are stated at cost. Diminution in value is made in case it is not being temporary in nature .

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactians in foreign currencies are accounted for af the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities af the year end are franslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the year-end. The
loss or gain thereon and also on the exchange differences on settlement of the foreign currency transactions during the year
are recognized as income or expenses and are adjusted to the profit and loss account for the year.

Retirement and other benefits to the E:%iployees ' .
The total cost of the Company's contributions to Provident and Pension/ Gratuity Funds are charged against revernue on
accrual basis. As per Company’s Policy, accrued leave is not encashable at the time of retirement or otherwise. Liability

against retirement gratuity is provided as per actuartal valuation done in tine with AS 15, .

Research and Development
Research and Development expenditure other than those relafing to Fixed Assets are charged against revenue as and when
incurred. ‘ '

Boirowing cost incurred in relation to the acquisition, construction, refurbishment of dqualifying assets and trial run period are
capitalized/ aliocated as the part of the cost of such assefs up to the date when such assets are put to use. Other borrowing
costs are charged as an sxpense in the year in which these-are incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are net of excise duly and returns up to the Balance Sheet date and accounted for on passing of property of goods
irrespective of actual dispatches. Returns / cancellations against sales are recognised as and when ascertained and are
netted from the amount of sales of respective year. :

Rebates, discounts, commissions and claims including insurance claims are accounted for to the extent these are due andfor
reasanably ascertainable.

income from Brand Royaity and fees are accounted for on accrual basis in terms of agreements with the party.

Taxes on Income

Provision for taxes is made for both current and deferred taxes. Tax on income for the current period is determined on the
basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of income Tax Act, 1261, and based on
the expected outcome of assessments/appeals. ' - '
Deferred tax are recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the year'which
are capable of reversal in subsequent periods, and quantified using the tax

rates and laws enacted or subsequently enacted as on the Balance Sheet date,

Deferred tax assets are recognized and cagried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable/virtual certainty, as required in
terms of Accounting Standard “AS-22° on Accounting for Taxes on Income, that sufficient future laxable income will be
available against which deferred tax assets can be realized.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation, if the Company
has a present obligation as a result of a past event, or a probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligaticn, and
the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

2 &



Authorised Capital

17,50,00,000 . Equity Shares of Rs10 each .
(17,50,06,000)

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
12,19,82.875 Equity-Shares of Rs.10 each

(12,19,82,875)

Notes:

As at
31.03.2015
(Rs in lakhs)

17,500.00

17,500.00
}
LI

12.198.29

a} Equity Sharesholder holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the nur;nber of equity shares held is as given below:

As at
31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs)

17.500.00

—_— ]
17,500.00

12,198.29

L PR N O T P L T .

Name of the Shareholder
Y% No. of Shares Y% No. of Shares
1.0iL Rim And Wheel Corporation Lid 13.61 16,600,935 13.61 18,600,935
{2.Wealth Overseas Pte Ltg 7.65 9,570,530 8.24 1@,049,150-
3.Hiland Traders Pvt Ltd . 16.48 20,109,137 16.48 20,109,137
4 Life Insurance Corporation of india Lid 5.23 6,379,452 523 6,379,452
5. Suncap Commaditiss Lid . 14.35 17,500,000 14.35 17,500,000
6. Regus Impex Pvt Lid 14.35 17,500,000 14.35 17,500,000
7. Salpuiri Commerce Pyt Lid 12,30 15,000,000 12.30 . 15,000,000
b} Terrhslrights attached to equity share
The Company has issued one class of equily share having par value of Rs 10/ per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled
to one vote per share,
—
. As at As at
31.03.2015 31.63.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Capital Redemption Reserve 70.00 70.00
Security Premium Reserve 1,264.81 1,264.81
Debenture Redemption Reserve . 133 133
Revaluation Reserve
As per Jast Batance Sheet 74,494.31 . 78,291.27
Less . Transferred to General Reserves Profit & Lass alc e 379696 70,697.35 - 379696 74,494.31
General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet - 8,642.03 8,642.03
Add : Transferred from Revaluation Reserve * _;3,1&5_3_6_ 12,438.99 - 8.642 03
Surplus
As per last Balance Sheet (23,234.32) B 512 o8




2.3) Long Term Borrowings - As at As at

© 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in fakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
a) Secured .
Term Loans
‘ From Banks - -
From QOthers ‘ : - -
From Related parties ' 4,138.45 : 4,138.45
4,138.45 * "+ 4,138.45

Note :
Loan from related parties are secured by Second charge on Company's Fixed Assets .

-

b} Unsscured

Loans from Related Parties 11,442 63 : 11,442 .63
Deposits (Dealers and C & FA) 133.14 . 13314
Other Loans and Advances 7,6587.70 7.587.70
19,163.47 19,163.47
TOTAL {a+h) 23.301.92 23.301.92
her L jabiliti
As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs;’in lakhs)
Statutory Liabiliies 71.86 71.85
Others 1.650.43 1,694 14
1.722.29 1,765.99
B As at As at
2.5) Long-term Provisions 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

| " {Rs in lakhs) IR in daled ol



Secured
Cash Credit/Overdraft from Banks

UnSecured
- Other Loans and Advances )
Other Loans and Advances from Relatad Parties

TOTAL
Note :

Cash credit / Overdraft are secured by ‘hypothecation of inventories, book debts

equitable mortgage of land at Sahagan.

August, 2011

L

manufacturing unit at Sahaganj, both present and futyre and are further secure

As at
31.03.2015
(Rs in jakhs)

3,820.65
3,820.65

- 46741
467.41

]

—_—— e
4,388,086

and afl other current assels related to Company's
d. by hypothecation of moveakic fixed asseis and

As at
31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs)

3,920.85

3,920.65,

A67.41
467.41

4.388.06

{2.7). Trade payables

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Others

Note :

None of the supplier have reported Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the company owes dues. _

As at
31.03.2015
{Rs in takhs)

41.91

41.91
_—

status as defined in the Micro, Small and|.

As at
31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs)

41.91
41.91

i

28) Qther Carrent Liahilities & Provic:

Other Current Liabifities
Advance from'Customers
Statutory Liabilities

Fixed Deposits

Other Liabilities

Note :

Pending settlement , no interest has been provided on these loans.

the Companv | aw RBasrd e il ko o de - b

As at
. 31.03.2015
(Rsin lakhs) -

Company has not repaid these loans and these loans are now under active consideration of one

Fixed Deposits were accepted fill 1997 and have faflen dus for repayment with earlier management, in terms of the order e .

3

As at
31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs)

418.84
799.56

6,566.03




DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED
Accounting Policies and Motes on Accounts o " y , R _
(Rsintz
2, Notes on Finangial Statements,
2.9, Fixed Assets GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION
As on - Umac&o:m\ . Ason For the Adjustment/ As o
31032014 | AN g ctments |ASOP 31820151 41030014 | period | Sale during |AS 0N 31.32015) 4 ey
“the period
Tangible Assets -
Freehold Land 33,84032 1+ - - 33,840.32 - - - . - 33,8
Freehold Buildings 15,485.22 - . 15,455,222 §,240.33 508.55 - 8757881 8.6
! easehold Buildings 17.15 - - - 17,158 3.93 - - 3.93
Piant and Machinery 105,256.81 0.81 - - 105,257.61 59,895,168 3,429.00 18.92 63,443.08 41,8
Fumiture and Fittings 559,54 - -1 550.54 543.680 3.12 - 546.72
Motor Vehicies 444 95 - - 444 95 330.03 80.72 0.67 420.42 . |
- Total ‘ 155,573.99 0.81 - 155,574.80 69,122.05 .4,030.39 19.59 73,172.03 _ 82,44
Previcus Year 184958131 . - | -] 184958131 61235331 304337 - 85.178.70 1197
Capitai Work in Progress 7.411.37 ] - | - 7.411.37 I _ ! 7.4

Pursuant to the enactment of Oo:..vmnnmm Act, 2013, the company has oozm_am..mo_ the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule I _"2. n:m_dm of am_u_.mn_m:o_
in respect of certain assets where estimated useful lives of the assets as per the provisions of Schedule Il is already expired but such assets are having ?3
Technical evaluation / revaluation of the assets, Accordingly, in such cases the unamortized carrying value is being depreciated over the remaining useful fiv

per respective .qmn::_nm_ evaluation/Revaluation Report and depreciation of Rs.3865.87 lakhs in respect of such assets has been accounted for in current year,
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'DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts
2. Notes on Financial Statements

210 Non-Current Investments

Non-Trade :
A. Quoted:

Equity Shares - fully paid
7,418 (7,418} Master Shares of Rs.10each of U T -

TOTAL (A)
B. Unguoted:
invesiment in Subsidiary Companies
20,500, (20,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid

of Ebony Commercial Pvt Ltd.

48,940, Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
of Dunlop East Lid.

' 49,940. Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
of Bunlop South Ltd.

Others : .
43, (40) 7% Debentures fully paid of
Royal Calcutta Golf Club Ltd.

5,000, Equity Shares of USD 1 each fully paid
of Wealthsea Litd

5,000, (5,000} Equity Shares of GBP 1 each fully paid
of Global Finvest Ltd

10,000, (10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
of Wizer Advertising Pt Ltd.

TOTAL (B)

TOTAL (A+B)

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments

As at
31.03.2015

{Rs in fakhs)

]

1.00

1.00

205

4.99

4.99

1.00°

2.30

4.00

1.00

20.33

21.33

252

”

e

As at
31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs)

1.00 |

1.00

2.05

4.99

4.99

1.00

2.30
4.00
1.00

20.33

21.33

1.80



As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs) )

Deferred Tax Assets : .

43 B items under lncome Tax Act, Carried forward loss and :
Unabsorked Depreciation T 9,740.00 9,740.00
Deferrad Tax Liabilifies ;

Depreciation , 186.00

T R
Deferred Tax Assets {Net) _ 9.55%.0p
Note :

The Company had recognized deferred tax asset as on 31.03.2007 on account of carried forward business losses and unabsorbed
depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961. This was-adjusted against General Reserve. The Company has fileq a petition on 11%
March, 2010 before Hon'ble Calcuiig High Court seeking extension of rjarry forward Josses period beyond 8 years because the
Company was under BiFR. Pending decision, Rs 33538 lakhs, which was adjusted against General Reserve in 2007-08 & 2008-09
was brought back fo General Reserve in 2009-10. '

{ Unsecured, Consideract Good) As at As at
' 31.03.2015 : 31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs) - (Rs in lakhs}
Security Deposits ) ‘ 80.24 80.24
Other loans ang advances ; 207.86 208.13
’ 288.10 288.37

{ Unsecured, Considered Good)

Loans and Advances to related parties 0.46 i 0.46
Other Short Term loans and advances - s 4
Duties Receivable 158.70 ‘ 154.90
Interest accryed but not due 18.70 16,70

Other Loans & Advances — 47343 648.83

As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in fakhs), ' (Rs in lakhs)
5,295.11 5,296.11
232.90 232.90
136.00 -

2.43) Inventories

Raw Materials
Work-in-progress
Finished Goods
Stores and spares




2 _Notes gn Finantial Statementfs

2.14)} Trade Receivables
{ Unsecured, Considerec! Good)

a) More than six months from the due date

h) Others

As at _ As at
31.03.2015 _ . 31.03.2014

{Rs in lakhs) {Rs in takhs)

34.62

As at . ' . As at

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) {Rs in takhs)
Batances with banks in Current account 22.90 22.08;
Cash on Hand 213 2.18
Other balances -
Fixed deposit with Bank (More than 12 months ) )
Fixed deposit with Bank- deposit Account 79.07
Fixed Deposit with Bank Margin deposit Account —_ 3314 112.21 — 3314 112.21
. N1227 — 11221
: _ 137.24 136.47
= 3.2 .13
2.16) As at ~As at
AJ-B-ﬂﬁn.ue_Etmn_Qpﬂalm 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
‘ {Rs in lakhs) (Rs in Jakhs)
Sale of products :
-Own - -
~Traded - -
Sale of services - -
Cther operating revenues — = —_— -
L ess: Excise Duty - -
B} Other Income
Interest ncome 4.70

Sundry lncome



Notes on Financial Statements

-

-

As at As at
2.47) Cost of Materials Consumed 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Opening Stock of Raw Materials 5,296.11 5,296.11
Add: Raw materials Purchased - -
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials 5,296,111 5.286.11
¥
2.18) Changes in Inventories As gt As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Onpening Stock
Finished Goods 136.00 136.00
Work-in-progress — 23290 . 23290
368.90 368.90
Finished Goods : 136.00 136.00
Work-in-progress —_— 23290 232901
) 368.90 368.90
2.19) Employees Benefit Expenses Asat As at
. : 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Salaries and Wages 75.86 . 126.04
ERS 312.01 -
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.03 -
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 63.50 -
Staff Welfare Expenses 13.90 -
466.10 126.04
2.20) Finance Cost As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in Jakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
interest on Loang - 0.37
Loan Processing Fees & Charges - 517
- 5.54 |
e A




;§,UNLOP INDIALTD

Y ing Polici n un

2.21) D-Eﬂteﬂlamn.and_amnmmwmm

As at As at T
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs) (Rs in takhs).
Depreciation * 4,030.39 3,943.35
Less : Transferred from Revaluation Reserve - 3,796.96
‘ " 4,030.39 146.39
* Refer Note no. 2.9 N
4
* e
2.22) Other Expenses As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
. (Rsin lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Power and Fuel 5.48 343}
Rent 26.50 26.50
Repairs to buildings 7.68 374
Repair Others 1.44 e
Security Charges 28.75 29.18
Legal Charges 548 3.14
Insurance - 1.30
Rates and Taxes exciuding taxes on lncome 1.59 1.60
Director's Sitting Fees- (.40 0.25
Auditors' Remuneration
Audit Fees- Tax Audit - -
Audit Fees- Statutory Audit 0.18 0.27
Certification and others - -
. 0.1 0.27
Audit Fees- Cost Audit - 018 _ . 0.27
Miscellaneous Expenses 711 17.27
84.61 86.68
DS
'2.23) Prior Period Adjustments As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs) {Rs in fakhs)
Reversal of Earlier year ‘éxpenses 11.98 -
Income of Previous Years - 0.22
_—
11.98 N 99




DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

ey,

-Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts

2.24) Confingent liahilities and gommijtments

-For the Year ended For the Year ended

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

{Rs in takhs} (Rs in lakhs)
Sales Tax Demands under appeal or otherwise disputed. 14,904.06 14,904.06
Income tax matters in appeal. ) 4Q6.00 400.00
in respect of Trade Finance faciltties availed and assignment
of factored debtors. ' 3361.36. 3,361.36

’ H

Commitments ‘ ML
In respect of gurantee issued in favour of WBSEDCL. 14520 145.20
In respect of corporate gurantee issued an behaf of Group .
Companies, 1783.25 1,783.25

[

2.25) In respact of the sale proceeds of Rs.70 lacs realized from 2 certain party in earlier years, the Company deposited the
amount with the Chennai High Court, and out of the same, a sum of Rs.35 lacs has been utifizad for payment of outstanding
dues of employees. The baiance lying with the court js pending adjudication

2.25) Other Long term liabilities{ Rs.1722.29 lacs appearing in Note 2.4) and Long term Advances (Rs,207.85 tacs appearing in

Note 2.12) represent lizbilities/assets for pre takeover pericd, which in the opinion of the Management is not
payable/realisable within one year of Balance Sheet date.

227} Confirmatfpn of balances has been sought from sundry creditors, sundry debtors and loans & advances given to parties:
_Confirmations are awaited. ) :

2.28) Present Directors are not disgualified in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, as legally advised
2.29) a) Paﬂiculai‘é in terms of the regulation/ directions issued by SEBI;

I} Holding Company: Wealth Sea Pte. Lid, {Singapore) through DIL Rim and Wheel Carporation Limited, Mauritius
I Subsidiaries: Ebeny Cornmercial Pyt Ltd, Dunlop East Lid., Dunlop South Lid A

ili) Associaie Companies
As per Separate Annexure

b) The Company's ratated party transactions during the and balances as at 31st Marsch,2015 are as below : ~

Srl No, Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
1) |Holding Company R _
2) |Subsidiary Companies -
Year end Balance {Recelvable) 0.45 0.4
3) |Associated Compariy
Expenses L ' "160.85 306.31
Year end Bzlance (Payable) ' 18,488.73 18,989 50
4} [Key Management Personnel -
Cilting Fase e ™



DUNLOP {NDIA LIMITED

Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts

2014-15
Rs.in lakhs

2013-14
Rs.in lakhs

2014-15
Value {Rs lakhs)

%

201314
Value (Rs lakhs)

MIL

NiL

NiL

NIL

2. Note Fi i3l S
2.30) Bawmaterial Consumption
Rubber
Fabric
. Carbon Black
Others
Total
2,31} Consumption of Raw mate)riais,spares parts and component consumed
- Imported .,
Indigeniucs
Total B
2.32) Valye ofimports cafculated on C.I.F basis
2.33) Expenditure in foreign currency
2.34} Information related to foreign exchange ramitted as dividend
2.35) Earnings in foreign exchanga
2.36) Segment Reporfing

- 2.37)

The Company operales in single segment, i.e. manufacturing/irading of Rubber products, such as Autemotive Tyres, Tubes, Industrial
Hoses, Transmission and Conveyer Belting, etc., hience the Accounting Standard 17 regarding Segment Reporting is not applicable.

In view of cnhtinuing Suspension of Operation at Ambatiur Factory and ron-availability of related data of workmen, the acturial valuation
of Gratuity could not be carrfed out during the year and hence no provisio

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL

ns has been made in the books of acoounts for the same.

Management has paid Rs.15.38 takhs towards Gratuily payment during 2014-15.
2.38} [Earning Per Share

Particulars 201415 2013-14
Basic and Diluted Earning / (Loss)
Per Share Before Extraordinary ltems

JNU of Shares Ouistanding for the period 121,982,875 121,982,875
Face Value of each Share (Rs) 10 10
Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax (Rs. Lacs) (4,264.05) {364.24)

[Addi{iess): Extraordinary llems (Rs. Laes)
Net Profit / {Loss) after Tax for calculation of Eaming/{Loss)} per Share
before extraordinary itemis (Rs. Lacs) (4,264.05) (364.24)
Basic & Diluted Earning / {Loss) Per Share Befere Extraordinary items
{Re) (3.50) - (0.30)
Basic and Diluted Earning / {1.oss}
Per Share After Extraordinary ltems
No of Shares Outstanding for the period 121,982,875 121,982,875
Face Value of each Shares( Rs) 10 1
Net Profit / (Loss} after Tax {Rs. Lacs) (4,264.05) (364.24)
Basic & Diluted Eaming / (Loss) Per Share After Extraordinary ltems
{Re} (3.50) (0.30)

239} Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As perour Report of eben date Attached
Far and on behalf of

Gora & Co. I vt ¥

bt Yol S

Forand on behalf of the Board

Pl

TN
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT . .

TO THE BOARD QFf DIRECTORS OF DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DUNLOP
INDIA LIMITED {*the Company™) and its subsidiaryfies, which comprises the
consolidated Balance shest as at March 31, 2015, and the consclidated Statement of
Profit and Loss -and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other examatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a wrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Company in
~accordance with the accounfing principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenanee of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements -
that give a frue and fair view and ave free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issuted by the Instifute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit fo
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstaternent.

* An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected

. depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financiat statemerits, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to +
the Company's preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial staterments ™ -
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting esfimates made
by management, as well as evaluatmg the overali presentation of the consolidated
flnanma[ statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

Wa draw attention to following notes:

1) Refer to note no. 2.6 regarding non-provision of interest on working capital loa
from a bank.

2} Refer to note no. 2.8 regarding non provision of interest an certain leans against
which one time settlement is under active consideration (amount not ascertained). 4



Gora & Co.

Chartered Accountants

3) Refer to note no. 2.1 regarding providing of defarred tax assets amounting lo Re,

4) We could not verified- the investments held as nonfocuidht of book-value of

The cumulative effects , of above could not be ascertainable on the net Logs and
shareholder’s fund as amaunt On certain notes is not quangified. _

Qualified Opinion

Subject to above, in our opinion and o the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors on the financial statements of the subsidiaries as ‘hoted below,
the consolidated financial statements give & true ang fair view in conformity with the
aceounting principles generally accepted in [ndia:-

(@) inthe case of the consolidated Balance Sheet of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31s March, 2015;

(b) inthe casé of conselidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the
' Prdfit for the year ended on that date; and

{€) inthe case of consalidated Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financia! statements of subsidiaries, whose financial statements
reflect total'assets(net) of Rs. 363.21 lakhs as azt 31st March,2014, totg fevenues -
amounting to Rs.0.12 lakh and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 0,03 Jakh for the

year then ended. These financial statements have been audited”by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to ys by the Management, and our opinion js
based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Our opinion is not qualified in
respect of this matter. : '

For GORA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Registration No.327183E '
-5 R RN
Koy
T <5

C/O Abhijit Dutt & Associates, , /Q’*“ % %

812, K.8.Roy Road,2nd Floor Partner f;," ";9

Room no.28 3. - _ o & g b

Kolkata-700001 o 7 ‘ Membership No.017630 {3*@ : %
) N :

Date: 0Z,082015 Y Aceois

e T SR,

.‘.A..\..—mh-_.,..::}“_..;......n



DUNLOP INDIA LTD

Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets

Consolidated Balance Sheet as af 31st March ,2015
As at 31st As at
Note ™ wrarch, 2015 31st March,2014
’ (Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds ',
Share Capital 2.1 12,198.2a 12,198.29
Reserves and Surplus 2.2 57.003.40 61,287.89
. ) 69,201.69 73,486.18
Non-Current Liabilities R
Long Term Borrowings 23 23,301.92 23,301.92
Other Long Term Liabilities - 24 2,023.39 2,066.36
Long Term Provisions 25 34242
25,667.73 25,962.71
Current Liabilitiss )
Short Term Borowings 2.6 4,388.08 4,388.06
Trade Payables 27 41.91 41.91
Other Current Liabilities 2.8 6,436.01 6,566.20
Shoerst Term Provision 28 ‘ |
i 11,747.45 11,177.35
TOTAL 106.516.87 110.626.24
_—— _——tra ¥
ASSETS

As per our Report of even date Aftached

For and on behalf of

Gora & Co, .

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 327183E

Tangible Assets 2.9 82,405.58 86,454.76
(i} Intangible assets )
Capital work-in-prograss 2.9 7411.37 7.4%1.37
Non-Current Investments 210 2.30 9.30
Deferred Tax Assets (et} . 2,11 8.554.00 9,554.00
Preliminary Expenses nat written off 0.09 0.18
Long Term Loans and Advances 212 __ 29760
98,677.94 103,727.48
Guirent Assets
Inventories 213 6.117.43 6,117.30
{ Trade Raceivables 2.14 34.82 34.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents 215 138.05 137.24
Short Term Loans and Advances 212 . 54883 609.60
5,938.93 6,898.7%
.
TOTAL 106.616.87 110,626.24
e U0 0.8 7
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Finangial Statements 2

Far and on behalf of the Board

: Dérector

/g
. th;:s\ Divector
DT
A0iR @



UNLOP INDIA LTD

# {Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March,2015.

1Parnear

No;e As at As at
31st March,2015 31st March,2044
(Rs in lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)

Revenue from Operations 216 - -
Other Income 2.16 305.19 1.07
Total Revenue 3065.19 1.07
Expenses: t

Cost of Materials Consumed 217 e .
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - .
Changes In Inventories-Finished Goods, 2.18 - -
woik-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade .

Employee Benefit Expenses 2.19 456.10 126.04
Finance Costs 220 ' - 5.54
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 2.21 . 4,030.39 148:39
Other Expenses 2.22 85.58 87.41
Total Expenses 4,682.07 365.38
Profit/(Loss) Before Extra Ordinary ltems and Tax {4,276.88) (364.31)
Exceptional/Extra Ordinary ltems - -
Prior Period Adjustment 23 11.98 (0.22)
Profit/{{Loss) before Tax (4,264.90) (364.53)1
Tax Expense: ) .
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax - -
Profit (Loss) for The Year (4.264,90) {364.53)
Basic And Diluted ( Rs.) (3.5G) {0.20)
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Notes on Financial Statements 2
As per our Repoit of even date Attached For and on behalf of the Board

For and on behalf of

Gora & Co. w»__—:

Chartered Accountant . itector Dirkctor

Firm Registration No, 327183E

G € Mukherjee %

A ™



CUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

SONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
~or the year ended 31st March, 2015

[A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:-

Net Profit (Loss) before tax and before exceptional iten

Add: Adjustment for-
Depreciation
Interest Income
Interest Expense

Operating Profit / {Loss) before Working Capital changes

Adjustments for:
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Trade and other Payabie
Long Term Trade Liabilities

Cash generated from Operations
Direct Taxes (paid) / Refund

Cash Flow before extraordinary itern
Exceptional item

Net Cash Fiow from Operating Activities

{B)} CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

i Net Purchase/Sale of Fixed Assets
Interesi Received

Net cash used in Investing Activities

{G) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: -

Praceeds from Long Term Borrowings
Praceeds from Short Term Borrowings
Interest Paid
Net Cash used in Financing Activities
Nét Increase / (Decrease) in Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 01.04.2014

Cash and Gash Equivalents as at 31.03.2015

»

Year ended 31st March,15

(Rs in L.akhs)

(4,264.90)

4,030.39
4.7

—_— 402568 .

{239.21)

(38.87)
{0.18)
318.09

——(42.97)

236.12
{3.09)

(3.0_9)

—_————

{0.81)

Year ended 31st March,14
{Rs in Lakhs)

(364.53)

146.39

— 5.5 151.93

(212.60)

¢ 74.81

LI _
175.99

—_— 250.80

38.20

38.20

(3.09) 28.20

3.89 -7

0.37
(32.88)

—— {554

- (38.05)
0.80 0.15
25.04 24.89

25.04

25.84

As per our Report of even date Attached
For and on behalf of

Gora & Co.

Chartered Accountant

Firm Registration No. 327183E

G € Mukherjes
Partner

Membership No,017630
KKotkata,

Diredtor

AR e

Chief Financial Offiger

For and on behalf of Boarg

bir"—ﬁ-..a;

-

Ditector

Company Secretary
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DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

1. Significant Aceounting Policies -

Basis of Accounting

The Company maintains its accounts following the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain fixed assets.
All expenses and income fo the extent known considered payable and receivable respectively unless stated otherwise have
been accounted for on mercantile basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements require management to make estimates and assumption that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities and assets as at the balance sheet date and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. ‘

H

. LI
Contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability witt be incurred and the amounts can reasonably be estimated.
Difference between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the year the results are known/ materialised,

Fixed Assets >
Fixed Assels are stated at cost of acquisition or construction or at revalued amounts wherever such assets have been
revalued. Cost includes cost of refurbishment, borrowing cost and other expenses incurred in bringing the assels to the

. conditions of intended use.

Depreciation

a) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method (SLM). Bepreciation
is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of

assets which were revalued and found to have usefuf life different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il

b) Depreciation in case of revalued amounts of fixed assets are provided on straight-line method on the values given by the
valuers on the basis of remaining usefut life as estimated by the valuers. :

¢} Classification of plant and machinery into Continuous Process Plant is done by the Management based on technical
cerfificates and reports,

Capital Work in Progress
Capital Work in Progress includes capital advances and expenses incurred during the refurbishment of the plants & Trial
Runs expenses pending allocation tll the Commercial use of the respective assets.

Impairment of Assets

- The carrying amounts of the company’s assets are reviewed at sach balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized,

wherever the carrying amount of an asset is in excess of its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of net
selling price of the asset or its value in use.

Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there has been change in the recoverable amotint
and such loss no longer exists or has decreased.

Impairment loss/reversal thereof is recognized as an expensefincome in the statement of profit and loss and adjusted to the -
carrying amount of the asset once all the departments/sections becormes operational over a period. Company is refurbishing
its various sections of manufacturing and is of the view that they will have carrying cost in excess of its recoverable amount.

inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is determined on the basis of first in first
out, except engineering stores, cost for which is computed on the basis of weighted averane Werk_im mrmaraco e e o

[ A N T T TR



e exchange rate prevailing at the year-end. The
ecn and also on, the exchange differences on settlement of the foreign Currency transactions during the year

Retirement ang other benefits to the Enmployess 7
The total cost of the Company's contributions to Pravident ang Pension/ Gratuity Funds are charged against revenue on

Research and Development

- Research angd Development expenditurs other than those relating to Fixeq Assets are charged against fevenue as and when
incurred. :

Sales are net of excise duly and returns Up to the Balance Sheet date and accounted for on passing of Property of gaods
irrespective of aciual dispatches. Returng ! cancellations against sales are recognised as and when ascertained and are
netted from the amount of sales of respec;tive year, : ’

Rebates, discounts, commissions and claims including insurance claims are accounted for to the extent these are due andfor -
reascnably ascertainable,

Deferred tax assets are recognized and carrieg forward to the extent that there is a reasonable/virtual certainty, as reguired in
terms of Accounting Standard ‘AS-22" on Accounting for Taxes on Income, that sufficient future taxable income will he
available against which deferred tax assets can be realized. -

Provisions -

Provisions are recognized for Jiabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation, if the Company
has a present obligation as aresult of a past event, or a probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, and
the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. . .




DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED
A ) lici 0 A

1. Principles of Gonsaolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Dunlop India Lid. ("the Company"} and its subsidiary companiss have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS 21) on Consolidated Financial Statements issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of |ndia (the ICAR.

The Censclidated Financial Statements refate to Dunlop India Limited and -its subsidiaries Incorporated in ladia, viz., Ebony Commercial Private Lid.,

Bunlop South Ltd and Dunlop East Lid.

The basis of the preparation of the Consclidated Financial Statements is as follows:

i) The financial statements (the Balance Sheet and Profit & Los
basis by adding fogether the book values of like items of assats, |
and the resuliing unrealised profits or losses.

$ Account) of the Company and its subsidiaries have baen combined on a line-by-line
iabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances and transactions

i The financiaf statements of subsidiarles used in the consolidation are drawn upto 31st March, 2015, the same reporting date as that of the Company.

i) The subsidiaries being wholly owned, no Gdodwil / Capital Reserve and Minarity interest have arisen.

Agcaunting Policiss of the Company and its subsidiaries is set oulin their respective financlai statements.

2 Nat Flnancial Stat l

2.1) Share Capital As at As at
31.03.2815 31.03.2014
(Rs in [akhs) {Rs in lakhs)
Authorised Capital
17,50,00,000 Ecuity Shares of Rs10 each 17,500.00 17,500.00

(17,50,00.500)
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

12,18,82,875 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
{12,19,82,875)

Notes:

Y z3%82%

_1rstee0

a) Equity Sharehclder holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the number of equity shares held is as given below:

—_ i7gnao]

. 12,198.29

(Name of the Sharehalder -
% No..of Shares % No. of Shares
1.DIL Rim And Whesl Corporation Lid 13.61 16,600,935 13.61 16,600,935
2.Wealth Cverseas Pte Ltd 7.85 9,570,530 8.24 10,049,150
3.Hifand Traders PviLid 16.48 20,109,137 16.48 20,108,137
4,Life Insurance Corporation of India Ltd 523 6,379,452 523 6,379,452
5. Suncap Commodifies Lid ' 14.35 17,500,000 14.35 17,500,000
6. Regus Impex Pvt Lid 14.35 17,500,000 14.35 17.500,000
7. Salputri Comenerce Put Lid 12.30 15,000,000 12.30 16,000,000
b) Terms/rights attached o equity share A
The Company has issued one class of equity share having par value of Rs 10/ per share. Each holder of equity share is entiled
to one vote per share. - .
2.2) Reserves apd Surpius
Asat As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Capital Reserve 5145 51.45
Capital Redemption Reserve 70.00 78,00
Security Premium Reserve 1,264.81 1,264.81
Debenture Redemption Ressive 133 1.33
Revaluation Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 74,494,314 78,291.27
Less : Transferred to General Reservel Profit & Loss ajc - R796.96. 70,697.35 — 3798095 74,494.31
—tGeneral Reserve
& \‘\\ As per last Balance Sheet 8,642.03 8,642.03

'\@O 3 dd : Transferred from Revaluation Reserve * 379896 12,438.99 - 3.842 03




2.023.39

As at As at
'31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
a} Secured ' .
Term Loans
From Banks “ -
From Others - .
From Related parties 4,138.45 4,138.45
4,138.45 4,138.45 |
Note ;
Loan from related parties are secyred by Second charge on Company's Fixed Assets _
b) Unsecured
Loans from Related Parties 11,442.63 11,442.63
Deposits (Dealers and C & FA) 133.14 133.14
Other Loans and Advances | 7,587.70 7.587.70
19,163.47 19,163.47
TOTAL (a+h) 23,301.92 23.301.92
4 her L ii
As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03,2014
(Rs in takhs) {Rs i lakhs)
Trade Payables 301.10 300.37
Statutory Liabilities 71.86 71.85
Others — 185043 : 1.694 14

2,066.36

As at
31.03.2015

IRe im [alibat

As at
31.03.2014




Secured
Cash Credit’Overdrait frqm Banks

UnSecured .
Other Loans and Advances

TOTAL
Note :

equitable mortgage of land at Sahaganj.

Other Loans and Advances from Reléted Parties

As at
31.03.2015
(Rs in lakhs)

3,820.65

3.820.65

48741t
467.41

]
e 438886

Cash credit / Overdraft are secured by hypothecation of inventories, book debts and all other current assets refated o Company’s|
manufacturing unit at Sahaganj, both present and future and are further secured by hypothecation of moveable fixed assets and

As at
31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs)
3,920.65

T 392085

— 46741
467.41

4.388.06

None of the supplier have reportéd Micro, Smail and M
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the company owes dues.

August, 2011
As at As at
2.7) Trade payables 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Others 41.91 41.91
41.91 41.91
MNote : ’

edium Enterprises status as defined In the Micro, Small and| -

2. r Current Liapilitj Provisi

Other Current Liabilities
‘ Advance from Customers
Statutory Liabilities .
Fixed Deposits
Other Liabitities

Note :

Other Liabilities includes old secured loans from KSIIDC- Rs.

Fixed Deposifs were acceptad il 1997 and have fallen

thes rmerrarng 1 s Dreres] dhaim se ol b b fe . st

As at
31.03.2015
(Rs in lakhs)

422,70

. 799.56
5213.75
6,436.01

e

333.05 lacs and Catholic Syrian Bank - Rs.450 lacs {P/Y Rs. 750 jacs),
Company has not repaid these loans and these loans are now under active consideraiion of one time settiement with the Lenders,
Pending settlement , no interest has been provided cn these loans.

due for repayment with earlier management. in terms of the order received from

-4

As at
31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs)

418.84
769.56

— 524780
6,566.20




DUNLOP INDIA LEVITED

Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts

(Rs in lakhs)

2 Not Financial S _ )
2.9, Fixed Assets GROSS BLOCK | DEPRECIATION NE

Ason - Deductions/ ~ Ason For the Adjustment/ | . Ason
sro3p01a | Addions s ciments |ASON 3132015 54039014 | period  |.Sale during Ason 31.32018) 54 6320185
» the period
Tangible Assets . -

Freehold Land 33,843.13 : - 33,843.13 - - - - 33,843.1
Freehold Buildings 15,455,23 - - 15,455,23 8249.33|  508.55 - 8,757.88 6,697.2
Leasehold Buildings 17.15 - - : 17.15 3.93 - - 3.93 13.2
Plant and Machinery 105,256.81 0.81 . 105,257 .61 59,995.16 | 3,420.00 18.92).  63,443.08 41,8145
Furniture and Fittings 559.54 - - 559.54 543.60 312 - 548.72 12.8
|Motor Vehicles 444.95 - - 44495 330.03 '80.72 0.67 420.42 24
Total 155,576.80 0.81 ‘ - 155,577.61 69,122.05]  4,030.39 19.59 73,172.03 82,405,
Previous Year 184,960.95 1 - "1 184060951 65178701 3.943351 - £9,122.05 115,838.€
Capital Work in Progress 7411.37/ - | -] 741137 ! ! _ 7411,

Pursuant to the enactment of Companies Act, 2013, the company has considered the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule Il for charge of depreciation ft
in respect of certain assets where estimated useful lives of the assets as per the provisions of Schedule Il is already expired but such assets are having furthe:
Technical evaluation /-tevaluation of the assets. Accordingly, in such cases the unamortized carrying value is being depreciated over the remaining useful lives

per respective Technical evaluation/Revaluation Report and depreciation of Rs.3885.87 lakhs in respect of such assets has been accounted for in current year.




DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED "

2. Not E ial S I '

2.10 Naﬂ;Qutzem_lulesjmﬁnm

Non-Trade :
A. Quoted:
Equity Shares - fully paid
7,418 (7,418) Master Shares of Rs.10 each of U T |
TOTAL {A)
B. Unquoted:
Others :
40, {40) 7% Debentures fully paid of
Royal Calcutta Golf Club Ltd.

5,000, Equity Shares of USD 1 each fully paid
of Wealthsea Ltd

5,000, (5,000) Equity Shares of GBP 1 each fully paid
of Glebal Finvest Ltd

10,000, (10,000} Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
of Wizer Advertising Pvt Lid.

TOTAL (B)

TOTAL (A+B)

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted investments
Aggregate Book Value of UnQuoted Investments

13
As at™'
31.03.2015
(Rs in lakhs)

1.00 -

1.00

1.00

2.30

4.00

1.00

3.30

8.30

2.62

1.00
8.30

As at
31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs)

1.00

1.00

1.007¢

2.30
4.00
1.00

8.30

9.30

1.80

1.00
8.30




Depreciation

Note :

Deferred Tax Assets : -
43 B items under Income Tax Act, Carried forward loss and
Unabsorbed Depreciation
Deferred Tak Liabilities -

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

The Company had recognized deferred tax asset as on 31.03.2007
depreciation under lncome Tax Act, 1961. This was adjusted again

As at
31.03.2015
{Rs in lakhs)

9,740.00

186.00

9.554.hg
I

L s =Y

As at
31.03.2014
{Rs in lukhs)

9,740.00

188,00

9,554.00

—

Security Deposits

Other loans and advances

{ Unsecured, Considered Good)

{ Unsecured, Considered Good)
Loans and Advances to related parties
Other Short Term loans and advances :

As at
31.03.2015
(Rs in lakhs)
80.24

2736

207.660

As at
31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs)

80.24
217.63

297.87

Stores and spares

136.00

Duties Receivable 158.70 154.90
Interest acerued but not due 16.70 16.70 e
Other Loans & Advances 473.43 648.83 438,00 ~609.50 |
648.83 609.60
I'— 3
2.13) Inventories As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
Immovable Property 350,00 350,00
Raw Materials 5,285.11 5,295.11
Work-in-progress 232,90 232.90
Finished Goods 136.00




—

2.14) Trade Receivables

_j

Hire Charges

< As at As at
( Unsecured, Considered Good) 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in fakhs)
a) More than six months from the due dﬁte 34.62 34.62
]
b) Others ' e —_— -
: 34,62 34.8
= 0
ZdﬁLQaahand_aash_aqmlgum As at As at
. 31.03.20115 31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs) (Rs in takhs)
Balances with banks in Current account 23.00 22.2;-2
Cash on Hand 2.84 2.82
Other balances :
Fixed deposit-with Bank (More than 12 months ) ‘
Fixed deposit with Bank- deposit Account 79.07 79.07
Fixed Deposit with Bank Margin deposit Account —_ 3314 112.21 ——— 3314 11221
138.05 137.25
2.16) As at . Asat
A)Revenue From QOperatipng 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Sale of products
-Qwn - -
~Traded - -
Sale of services - -
Other operating revenues _— - — =
Less; Excise Duty - -
. -
B) Other income
Interest lncome 4.70 -



’ Notes on Financial Statements

) : As at As at
2.17) Cost of Materials Consumed 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
Opening Stock of Raw Materials 5.206.11 5,296.11
Add: Raw materiats Purchased - ) - -
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials 5,296.11 5,286,11

2.18) Changes in Inventories

LI

As at

2.20) Finance Cost Asat As at
o 31.0?_:.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) {Rsin lakhs)
tnterest on Loans - 0.37
Loan Processing Fees & Charges - 5.17
_—
- 5.54
i aﬁm
A N P i~ = .

As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) {(Rs in lakhs)
Opening Stock :
Finished Goods 136.00 136.00
Work-in-progress — 23290 — 23290
368.90 368.90
Finished Goods 136.00 136.00
Work-in-progress — 23280 — 23200
368.90 368.90 |:
—_— -
—
mmmﬂlﬁﬂi&enﬂﬁmﬁs As at As at
. 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rs in fakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Sataries and Wages 7566 126.04
ERS 312,04 -
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.03 -
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 83.50 -
Staff Welfare Expenses 13.90 -
466.10 126.04




nting Policies and Notes on nt

Income of Previous Years

2.21) Deprecitaion and amortization expenses As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
(Rs in lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
Depreciation * 4,030.38 3,943.35
Less : Transferred from Revaluation Reserve - 3,796.96
' 4,030.39 146.39
Refer Note no. 2.9
1l
LI
2.22) Other Expenses As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03,2014
{Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Power and Fuel 5.48 3.43
Rent 26.50 26.50
Repairs to huildings. 8.41 4.13
Repair Others 1.44 -
Security Charges 28.75 2918
Legal Charges 5.48 3.15
Insurance - 1.30
Rates and Taxes excluding taxes on Income 1.69 1.60
Director's Sitting Fees 0.40 0.25
Auditors’ Remuneration’
Audit Fees- Tax Audif - -
Audit Fees- Statutory Audit 0.25 0.35
Cerlification and others - - -
0.25 0.35
Audit Fees- Cost Audit - 0.25 - 0.35
Miscellanegus Expenses 7.28 17.52
' 85.58 §7.41!
2.23) Prior Period Adjustments As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
{Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Reversal of Earlier year expenses 11.98 -

0221




# DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

Accqunting Policies and Notes on Accounts

2 Notes on Eingaci

2.24)

2.25)

2.26)

2.27)

2.28)

2.29)

For the Year ended
31.03.2014
{Re in takhs}

14,904.086
400.00

3,361.36

145,20

1,783.25

{Rs.207.86 lacs appearing in
pinion of the Management is not

loans & advances given to parties.

- For the Year ended
31.03.2015
. (Rs in lakhs)
Conti f Liabilifi .
Sales Tax Demands under appeal or otherwise disputad. 14,904.06
Income tax matters in appeal. . 400.00
In respect of Trade Finance facilities availed and assignment
of factored debtors. 3361.36
}
’ LI
. . :
I respect of gurantee issued in favour of WBSEDCL, 145.20
In respect of corporate gurantee issued on behalf of Group '
Companies. . 1783.25
In respect of the sale proceeds of Bs.70 lacs realized from a certain party in earlier years,
amount with the Chennai High Court, and out of the same, a sum of Rs.35 i
dues of employees, The balance lying with the court is pending adjudication
Gther Long term liabilities{ Rs.1722.29 lacs appearing in Note 2.4) and Long term Advances
Note 2.12) represent liabilities/assets for pre takeover period, which in the o
payable/realisable within gne year of Balance Sheet date.
Confirmation of balances has been sought from sundry creditors, sundry debtors and
Confirmations are awaited. ' '
Present Directors are not disqualified in terms of Sectign 164(2) of the Companieé Act, 2013, as legally advised
a) Particutars in terms of the regulation/ directions issued by SEBI:

) Helding Company: Weaith Sea Pte. Ltd. (Singapore) through DIL Rim and Wheel Corporation Limited, Mauritiug -

iii} Associate Companies
As per Separate Annexure

b) The Company's related party transactions during the and balances as at 31st March,2015 are as below : ~

Sri No. Particulars 2014-15 201314
1) [Holding Company - -
2) |Associated Company .
Expenses 169,85 306.31
Year end Balance {Payable) 18,488.73 18,989.59

- 3)

Key Management Personnel




DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED

Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts

: o Enania

<+, 2:30)

Rubber ,
Fabric
Carbon Black
Others

Total

2.31) Consumption of Raw materialls,spares parts and component consumed

Imported .

Indigenit:es
Total

2.32) mamwm@mmmmm
2.33) Exﬂﬂﬂdﬂutemmumm

234) Inforoati tafed to forsi ; itted &3 dividend

2.35) Eﬁmmammmummm
'2.36) Segment Reporting

The Company operates in éingie segment, i.e, manufacturingltradlng of Rubber praducis, such as Autemotive Tyres, Tubes, Industrial
Hoses, Transmission and Conveyor Belting, etc., hence the Accounting Standard 17 regardin,

2.37) D 15" its"

In view of continuing Suspension of Operaticn at Ambattur Factory and non-
of Gratuity could not be carried out during the year and hence no provisio

Valua (Rs lakhs)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NiL

availability of related data
ns has been made in t

201415 2013-14
Rs.in lakhs Rs.in fakhs
- -
2014-15 2013-14

Value (Rs lakhs)

NiL
NiL
NIL

NIL

g Segment Reperiing is not applicable.

Management has paid Rs.15.39 lakhs towargs Gratuity paymant during 2014-15,

2.38} _Earning Per Share
Particulars 201415 201314
Basic and Diluted Earning / (Loss)
Per Share Before Extraordinary items
No of Shares Outstanding for the period 121,982,875 121,982,875
Face Valus of each Share (Rs) 10 10
Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax (Rs. Lacs) (4,264.90) {364.53)
Add/(Less): Extraordinary ltems (Rs. Lacs}) -
Net Profit ¢ (Loss) after Fax for calculation of Earning/{Loss) per Share
before extraordinary items {Rs. Lacs) {4,264.90) (364.53)
Basic & Diluted Earning 7 (Loss) Per Share Before Extraordinary liems
(Re) (3.50) (0.30)
Basic and Diluted Earning / {Loss}
Per Share After Extraordinary Moms
No of Shares Outstanding for the period 121,982,875 121,082,875
Face Value of each Shares( Rs) i0 14
Net Profii # (Loss) after Tax (Rs. Lacs) (4,264.90) (364.53)
Basic & Diluted Earning / {Loss) Per Share After Extraordinary ltems
(Re) {3.50) (0.30)

2.39) Previous year figures have been regrauped wherever necessary.

As per our Report of eben date Attached
For and on behalf of
Gora & Co.,

N
Charterad Accounﬁﬁ%

For anclo;bphalf of the Board

of warkmen, tha atturial valuation
he books of accounts for the same,




DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED
CIN: L25191WB1926PLC008539
Registered Offlce Flat No.1, Front Side, 5" Floor, 9, Syed Amir Ali Avenue, Kolkata 700017.

PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to section 105(6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies {Management and Admlnlstratlon) Rules, 2014]
Name of the member(s): E-mail Id:
Registered address: Folio No/*Client Id:

*DP Id:

I/We, belng the member(s) of ..., shares of Dunlop india Limited, hereby appoint :
L 1 TP JUUUR OF e, having e-mail id...........ccccc i or failing him
2} e OF e having e-mail id........cooco e or failing him
3) Oof e having e-mail id........cccccoeevrninnne SUTUTR

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote {on a poll) for me/us and
on mylour behalf at the 88th Annual General Meeting of the Com;ianyg to be held on Saturday,26th
December, 2015 at 11:00 a.m. at 21 & 22, Jessore Roasd, Kolkata - 700028 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

** 1 wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Resolutions ' For | Against

1. Consider and adopt :

Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31%t March,2015 and the Balance Sheet  as at
that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. Re-appointment of Sri A.K.Agarwal who retires by rotation.

3. Appointment of Auditors and fixing their remuneration

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s)the following
Resolution : : ,

4. As an Ordinary Resolution :
Appointment of Sri. Rupendra Nath Kumar as an Independent Director.

Signed this.............. day of....ccccce.e 2015 Signature of shareholder ' Affix one

- rupee
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of first proxy holder  Signature of second holder  Signature of third proxy holder

Notes : ' '

{1 This form of proxy in.order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the

" meeting. i
(2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.
(3) . A person can act as a: proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the

aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A~
member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other
person or shareholder,

** (4) This is only optional. Please put a ‘X' in the appropriate column against the resolutions
indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the
resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as hefshe thinks appropriate.

{5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so
wishes.

(B) In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all
the joint holders should be stated.



ATTENDANCE SLIP
DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED : '
CIN: L25191WB1926PLC008539
Registered Office: Flat No.1, Front Slde 5" Floor, 9, Syed Amir Ali Avenue, Kolkata - 700017

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

DP ID* ‘ ~ [FOLIO NO

CLIENT ID* . NO OF SHARES

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER

| hereby record my presence at the 88TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEEﬂNﬁ,of the Company held on
Saturday, 26" December, 2015 at 11:00 a.m. at 21 & 22, Jessore Road, Kolkata - 700028.
* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. '

CHILDREN ARE NOT ALLOWED o :
‘ Signature of Shareholder / proxy

...................................................................................................................................................................



If undelivered, please return to :

DUNLOP INDIA LIMITED
Registered Office :
Flat No. 1, Front Side,
5% Floor, -
9, Syed AmirAli Avenue,
Koikata -700 017




